
 

THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE 
 

TOWN OF NORTHBRIDGE 
BOARD OF SELECTMEN'S MEETING 

NORTHBRIDGE TOWN HALL 
7 MAIN STREET - WHITINSVILLE, MA  01588 

August 20, 2018 at 6:15 PM  
  
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 6:15 PM  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: A. 1) June 11, 2018  2) June 25, 2018  3) July 16, 2018   

4) August 9, 2018 Special Meeting 
 
II. PUBLIC HEARING 
  
III. APPOINTMENTS/By the Board of Selectmen/Vote to appoint: B. 1) Susan Brouwer, Northbridge 

Housing Authority 2) Central Mass. Regional Planning Commission: a) Second Delegate b) Alternate 
 
C. By the Town Manager/Vote to affirm: Caryn Gagner, Senior Library Assistant 
 
D. RESIGNATION: Brian Murphy, Economic Development Committee 

 
IV. CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT: Local Business Spotlight: Relay Power/Present: Neil Potter 
 
V. DECISIONS: 

E. Whitinsville Christian School/1) Request to hold a road race on Saturday, September 22, 2018 at 8:30 
AM, subject to the safety requirements of the Northbridge Police Department. Present: Sonia Zeyl. 2) 
Request to hang a banner across Church Street from Sunday, October 7, 2018 to Sunday, October 21, 2018 to 
advertise their Dutch Apple Pie sale. 
 
F. St. Patrick’s Church, 7 East Street, Whitinsville/1) Request to hang a banner across Church Street from 
September 9, 2018 to September 23, 2018 to advertise the Annual Fall Family Fun Fest to be held Sunday, 
September 23, 2018. 2) Request to close East Street from Cross Street to the entrance of the Pleasant Street 
Christian Reformed Church parking lot on Sunday, September 23, 2018 from 7 AM to 5 PM. 
 
G. Alternatives Unlimited, Inc., 50 Douglas Road, Whitinsville/Request for a One-day Wines and Malt 
License for their Annual Valley Bag Toss event to be held on Saturday, September 22, 2018 from 12 PM to 5 
PM on the Whitin Mill Community Plaza [Rain date: 9/23/18].  
 
H. Charles Thompson/Request permission to hold the road race portion of the Greenway Challenge event in 
Whitinsville on Saturday, September 29, 2018, subject to the safety requirements of the Northbridge Police 
Department [Rain Date: October 6, 2018]. 
 
I. George Marston Whitin Memorial Community Association, 60 Main Street, Whitinsville/1) Request for a 
One-day Entertainment License for the Greenway Challenge event to be held on Saturday, September 29, 
2018, from 12 Noon to 5 PM in Whitin Park.  Present: Sarah Lawson, Director of Marketing and Events. 
 
J. Purgatory Beer Company, LLC, 670 Linwood Avenue, Bldg. C., Whitinsville/Request for a One-day 
Malts Only License for the Greenway Challenge event to be held in Whitin Park on Saturday, September 29, 
2018, from 12 Noon to 5 PM. 
 
K. George Marston Whitin Memorial Community Association, 60 Main Street, Whitinsville/1) Request for a 
One-day Wines and Malt License for their Fall Food Festival to be held on Saturday, October 13, 2018 from 
11 AM - 3 PM in Whitin Park.  2) Application for a One-day Entertainment License for the Fall Food 
Festival. Present: Sarah Lawson, Director of Marketing and Events. 
 



 

THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE 
 

 
L. Fresh Brewed Inc. dba Dunkin Donuts, 4 North Main Street, Whitinsville/Application for a Common 
Victualler’s License contingent upon compliance with all requirements of the Town. Present: Barbara 
Denesowicz    
 
M. Whitinsville Gas and Market, LLC, 4 North Main Street, Whitinsville /Application for a Common 
Victualler’s License contingent upon compliance with all requirements of the Town. 
 
N. Riverdale Cemetery Deeds/1) Leonard & Kathy Bangma [Maple Ave. North, Lot #4] 2) Michael and 
April Jacobs [Maple Ave. North, Lot #11] 

  
O. State Primary Election [September 4, 2018]/Vote to sign warrant 

  
P. Northbridge 2018 Water Rates & Schedule Adjustments  
 
Q. Fall Annual Town Meeting [October 23, 2018] / Vote to place articles on warrant 

  
R. Town Manager Performance Evaluation 

 
VI. DISCUSSIONS: 
 S. FY ‘17 Town Audit/Present: Scott McIntire, CPA (Melanson Heath) 
 
VII. TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT 
VIII. SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS      
IX. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA  
X. CORRESPONDENCE  
 
XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION 6:15 PM: T. 1) Under M.G.L c.30A, Sec. 21 #2 - To conduct contract 

negotiations with Non-Union personnel (Town Manager). 

Town Clerk:  2 Hard copies □ 
Web: Post time-stamped copy □ 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN'S MEETING 

June 11, 2018 

 

A meeting of the Board of Selectmen was called to order by Chairman Ampagoomian at 6:30 PM, 

Northbridge Town Hall, 7 Main Street, Whitinsville, MA. Present: Messrs. Ampagoomian, Athanas, 

Melia and Nolan. Selectwoman Cannon was absent and it is duly noted. Also Present: Adam D. 

Gaudette, Town Manager. 

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by those present. 

 

Chairman Ampagoomian announced that the Board would be going into Executive Session and declared 

that having an open meeting may have a detrimental effect on the negotiating position of the body. 

  

 A motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. Nolan to go into Executive Session under M.G.L c.30A, Sec. 21 #2 - 

To discuss strategy with respect to contract negotiations for non-union personnel [Fire Chief] and under 

M.G.L c.30A Sec. 21 #3 - To discuss strategy with respect to contract negotiations [Police, Firefighters, 

& DPW] -and reconvene in open session. Roll Call Vote: Mr. Athanas/Yes, Mr. Ampagoomian/Yes, Mr. 

Melia/Yes, and Mr. Nolan/Yes.  

 

Open Session Adjourned: 6:32 PM 

 

Executive Session Convened: 6:33 PM 

 

Executive Session Adjourned: 6:58 PM 

 

Open Session Reconvened: 7:01 PM 

 

PRESENTATION: Certificates of Special Recognition awarded to Eagle Scouts Stephen Oncay, Nathan 

Lamberson, and Chad Lamont. Chairman Ampagoomian introduced the Scouts and spoke about the Eagle 

Scout Ceremony that was held on June 9, 2018 and the projects the scouts completed to achieve this great 

accomplishment. Chairman Ampagoomian congratulated each Eagle Scout and wished them the best of 

luck in their future endeavors.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 1) May 7, 2018. A motion/Mr. Athanas, seconded/Mr. Nolan to approve 

the May 7, 2018 minutes as presented with the readings omitted. Vote yes/Messrs. Ampagoomian, Athanas, 

Melia and Nolan. 2) May 21, 2018. A motion/Mr. Nolan, seconded/Mr. Athanas to approve the May 21, 

2018 minutes as presented with the readings omitted. Vote yes/Messrs. Ampagoomian, Athanas, and Nolan. 

Abstain: Selectman Melia.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING/None.  

 

APPOINTMENTS/By the Town Manager: Ms. Kim Corey, Administrative Assistant, Police 

Department/Present: Walter Warchol, Police Chief. Chief Warchol introduced Ms. Corey to the Board 

and stated that upon advertising they received an abundant number of applicants, which was then narrowed 

down to five finalists. After interviewing the five finalists, they were able to narrow it down to two, both 

of which had experience as Assistant to the Chief of Police.  Chief Warchol stated that Ms. Corey was 

previously the Administrative Assistant to the Chief of Police in Millbury and noted she is a lifelong 

resident of Northbridge. Chief Warchol stated Ms. Corey will be an asset to the Police Department. A 

motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. Ampagoomian to affirm the Town Manager’s appointment of Ms. Kim 

Corey as the Administrative Assistant to the Chief of Police. Vote yes/Messrs. Ampagoomian, Athanas, 

A1.



Board of Selectmen 

  June 11, 2018 Meeting Minutes 

2 

 

Melia and Nolan.   

   

CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT: Local Business Spotlight: Our Northbridge, Mike Dutra. Mr. 

Dutra explained that Our Northbridge is a non-profit organization that focuses on the needs of those in town 

that face the greatest challenges. He said the reason behind the non-profit was to help return the Town to a 

time where prosperous citizens give back to the town. Mr. Dutra gave an example of when individuals 

would build a library and donate it to the Town for one dollar. He also stated Our Northbridge was started 

just over a month ago and they have received over three thousand dollars in donations going back to the 

community along with toys, diapers, wipes, formula and other things that young parents need. Mr. Dutra 

added that Our Northbridge strives to feed the children with not only food but with knowledge as well. Our 

Northbridge strives to clean up the streets and improve public spaces. For more information, visit the 

Facebook group Our Northbridge (Helping Hands). In closing, Mr. Dutra explained that Helping Hands is 

a division that focuses on taking care of children such as providing diapers and wipes, etc. Our Northbridge 

is located at 101 Church Street, Whitinsville MA. The office hours are Monday through Friday 9 AM to 5 

PM.  

 

Randy Dean Ross dba Lakeside Lunch Stop, 355 Main Street, Whitinsville, MA 01588/ Application 

to transfer the non-alcoholic Common Victualler license from Charles Berry d/b/a Dotta’s Kitchen 

[Charles Berry, Mgr.] to Lakeside Lunch Stop.  Mr. Ross stated that he plans to keep the hours the same, 

which are 11 AM to 4 PM. He said he is open to making changes down the road, but he is getting used to 

the business right now.  Mr. Ross mentioned that the Fire Chief’s inspection had some additional 

requirements, but Fire Chief White explained to him that if he shows forward progress he won’t object to 

the Select Board approving it.  There being no further discuss, a motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. Nolan to 

approve the transfer of the non-alcoholic Common Victualler license from Charles Berry d/b/a Dotta’s 

Kitchen, 355 Main Street, Whitinsville, MA 01588 to Randy Dean Ross dba Lakeside Lunch Stop. Vote 

yes/Messrs. Ampagoomian, Athanas, Melia and Nolan.  

 

Alternatives/Request to hang a banner across Church Street from July 1, 2018 to July 15, 2018 to 

advertise the Free Summer Concert Series, Thursdays, from July 5, 2018 to August 30, 2018 on 

Alternatives Community Plaza. A motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. Athanas to approve the request to 

hang a banner across Church Street from July 1, 2018 to July 15, 2018 to advertise the Free Summer Concert 

Series. Vote yes/Messrs. Ampagoomian, Athanas, Melia, and Nolan.  

 

Bond Anticipation Notes (Department of Public Works)/Vote to Sign/Present: Julie Harris,  

Treasurer/Collector and Neil Vaidya, Town Accountant. Mr. Vaidya explained that the FY19 budget 

was approved at town meeting and includes the first payment for the DPW Facility project. He stated that 

he is before the Board this evening for approval of those bonds. He also explained that this will be a bond 

that floats every year and the interest will be paid off. A motion/Mr. Nolan, seconded/Mr. to award the sale 

of $2,500,000 Bond Anticipation Notes dated June 29, 2018 payable June 28, 2019 to Unibank for Savings 

at a rate of 2.00%. 

 

Vote to accept monetary donation for Scholarship/Present: Julie Harris, Treasurer Collector and 

Neil Vaidya, Town Accountant. Ms. Harris explained that the Town is in receipt of a donation towards 

the Thomas Prior and Joey LaFleur Scholarship at the School Dept. Ms. Harris explained that tonight’s vote 

is a formality to accept the donation. Selectman Melia asked where the donation came from. Ms. Harris 

explained that it came from Joey LaFleur’s father, who recently passed away. She also mentioned that he 

is making a lump sum donation to the scholarship fund to settle his estate. A motion/Mr. Melia, 

seconded/Mr. Athanas to accept the monetary donation for the Thomas Prior and Joey LaFleur Scholarship 

Fund. Vote yes/Messrs. Ampagoomian, Athanas, Melia, and Nolan. 

 



Board of Selectmen 

  June 11, 2018 Meeting Minutes 

3 

 

Dog Warrant/Vote to sign. A motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. Nolan to sign the Dog Warrant. Vote 

yes/Messrs. Ampagoomian, Athanas, Melia, and Nolan. 

 

Intermunicipal Agreement with the Town of Upton for Conservation Agent Services/Vote to Sign. 

Town Manager Gaudette explained that this is a continuation of an existing agreement between the Town 

of Upton and the Town of Northbridge for sharing Conservation Agent services. He also said that the Agent 

is an employee of the Town of Upton, but the Town of Northbridge contributes towards the employee’s 

salary and benefits. Mr. Gaudette added that this is a 3-year contract with changes to the rate amounts and 

dates. A motion/Mr. Nolan, seconded/Mr. Melia to sign the Intermunicipal Agreement with the Town of 

Upton for Conservation Agent Services. Vote yes/Messrs. Ampagoomian, Athanas, Melia, and Nolan. 

 

Riverdale Cemetery Deed/Liavoni Ambert [Maple Ave., Row 6, Grave 4]. A motion/Mr. Melia, 

seconded/Mr. Nolan to approve the sale of a cemetery lot on Maple Ave., Row 6, Grave 4 to Liavoni 

Ambert. Vote yes/Messrs. Ampagoomian, Athanas, Melia, and Nolan. 

     

Municipal Vulnerability Preparedness Grant (MVP)/Present: R. Gary Bechtholdt, Town Planner & 

Members of Central Mass. Regional Planning Commission (CMRPC). Mr. Bechtholdt introduced 

Hoamy Tran, Assistant Planner with CMRPC and Adam Menard, Assistant Planner with CMRPC, who he 

explained would be presenting tonight. Mr. Bechtholdt reminded the Board that Northbridge partnered with 

the Town of Grafton and the Town of Millbury for the Municipal Vulnerability Preparedness grant. With 

that, multiple workshops have been held, along with meetings with local stakeholders and municipal 

departments. Ms. Tran explained that the MVP grant program provides support for communities to begin 

the process of planning for climate resiliency. Those communities who complete this process become 

certified as an MVP Program Community, which opens the door for follow-up grant funding and the 

priorities that are identified as part of the process the Town can apply for funding afterwards. Bonus points 

are received on State grant applications as being MVP Program communities. Ms. Tran explained that the 

MVP Program is guided by four primary objectives. 1) define extreme weather, natural and climate -related 

hazards. 2) Identify vulnerabilities and strengths 3) develop and prioritize actions for the community and 

broader stakeholder networks 4) identify opportunities for the community to advance to reduce risks and 

build resilience. She further explained that at the workshop, the participants were asked to define the top 

hazards that will impact their community in the long run. The four hazards identified were flooding, which 

includes dam failure, winter storms and ice, wildfires and droughts, as well as extreme temperatures. Ms. 

Tran added that with these hazards they have identified priority areas that would be impacted the most along 

with actions to address them. She pointed out that they viewed the priorities and actions in three different 

categories. The first category is environment. The following priority features, voted by the participants, 

would be the most affected by a climate change. On that list is: Open space, riverbank erosion, river 

sediments, forest land, and street trees. The second category is society. The priority concern areas that were 

expressed were the Rockdale and New Village areas due to the infrastructure and lack of resources. The 

third category is infrastructure, which included discussion on bridges and culverts. Ms. Tran explained that 

the next steps would be to wrap up the final report, which is comprised of a regional report made up of all 

the regional actions that were found from this process and separate local reports. She said the report would 

be submitted at the end of the month, at which point Northbridge will receive an MVP Program Community 

Designation and in the fall grant funding will be available. Selectman Athanas asked if the grants awarded 

this year were matching grants. Mr. Bechtholdt explained that he wasn’t sure, and since it is the first roll-

out there were only a handful of communities ready to apply for grants. Selectman Athanas also asked if 

when the DPW Facility was built if it was moved out of the floodplain. Mr. Bechtholdt stated he believes 

the structures are out of the floodplain but the site itself would still fall under the floodplain. Chairman 

Ampagoomian asked about the dredging of the Blackstone River. Mr. Bechtholdt explained that discussion 

took place in recognizing the historical flooding over the years in Rockdale and are looking at ways to 

address it.  

 



Board of Selectmen 

  June 11, 2018 Meeting Minutes 

4 

 

Laurie Leeman/Request to do a Holiday Décor and Planter Project/Present: Laurie Leeman and Julie 

Harris, Treasurer/Collector. Ms. Leeman explained that as a resident in Douglas, she took on a project 

to beautify Main Street. She compiled an action plan and gathered a team. Boxed planters and telephone 

planters were placed throughout Main Street and resident volunteers help to maintain the planters. The 

planters were funded by donations made by local businesses. Ms. Leeman stated that she would like to start 

small and begin with a wreath project for Providence Road and Church Street, which would involve about 

60 ornamental poles to hang the wreaths. She explained she would also like to get enough wreaths for 

municipal buildings for a total of one hundred wreaths. Ms. Leeman added she would like to set up a fund 

for any donations to go towards the wreaths and any left-over money could go to the Fire Department for 

fireworks. Ms. Harris explained that the account would be set up as its own bank account strictly for these 

donations. The Town will process all the funds and bills through the donation account and the Selectmen 

will be periodically updated with the amount of donations going into the account. Selectman Melia verified 

that both the Department of Public works and the Fire Department have agreed to assist in the hanging and 

removing of the wreaths. Ms. Leeman stated they have both been very gracious and offered their services. 

A motion/Mr. Nolan, seconded/Mr. Athanas to move this item from discussions to decisions. Vote 

yes/Messrs. Ampagoomian, Athanas, Melia, and Nolan. A motion/Mr. Nolan, seconded/Mr. to approve Ms. 

Leeman’s request to do a Holiday Décor and Planter Project as noted above and to establish a bank account 

for that purpose. Vote yes/Messrs. Ampagoomain, Athanas, Melia and Nolan.  

 

School Building Committee Project Update/Present: Joseph Strazzulla, School Building Committee. 

Mr. Strazzulla stated that the School Building Committee [SBC] will be meeting on Saturday at 3 PM with 

neighbors of the Balmer School to give them a chance to visit the school and get an overview of the project 

details. There will be a Board Meeting with the Massachusetts School Building Authority on June 27, 2018, 

which will determine the approval of the Project Budget and Schematic Design. Mr. Strazzulla stated that 

there will be another community forum on August 20, 2018. He stated that at the October 23, 2018 Annual 

Fall Town Meeting will include a vote for the School Building Project. During the Joint Committee meeting 

discussion took place regarding the ballot options. The first option is to submit the language to the State by 

August 1, 2018 to be approved for the November 6th ballot. The second option would be to hold a Special 

Election to take place in early December 2018. Mr. Strazzulla explained that the November 6th ballot 

included the Governors Election and two significant ballot questions. He also noted that the SBC felt as 

though it is too much and might be confusing to residents if the School Building Project question was also 

included on that ballot. He said he is looking to have a discussion with the Board on which option they 

would support. Selectman Athanas stated if they decide to go with the November 6th Election, the resident 

outcome will be a better turnout, however, with a special election, voters would be more aware that it is 

only the School Building Project question on the ballot. Selectman Athanas explained he was still undecided 

as to which option he feels would be best. Selectman Melia agreed with Selectman Athanas and applauded 

the committee for all their hard work. He stated he felt as though some residents would think the Town is 

trying to pull the wool over their eyes by having a Special Election; not to mention the cost associated with 

holding one. He mentioned he is leery about having a special election. Selectman Nolan stated he is leaning 

towards the November Election ballot. He said he believes that a bigger turnout is advantageous and a big 

part of it is voters who are renters in Town and are not going to see a big tax increase as a negative since it 

won’t impact them directly. Chairman Ampagoomian stated that he agrees it should be on the November 

ballot and added that no matter which ballot the question is on, residents still need to be informed about the 

details of the ballot question. Mr. Strazzulla thanked the Board for their input and explained he would 

update the SBC after the meeting with the Massachusetts Building Authority.   

 

TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT: 1) Meetings Attended: Monday, May 28, 2018 – Attended Memorial 

Day services. Tuesday, May 29, 2018 – Met with Financial Team. Wednesday, May 30, 2018 – Met with 

MMA Staff that visited Town Hall. Tuesday, June 5, 2018 – Met with Fire Chief White to discuss staffing. 

Tuesday, June 5, 2018 – Met with the DPW Union to endorse the CBA for FY 2019-FY 2021. Wednesday, 

June 6, 2018 – Met with Police Union member to discuss CBA discussions. Wednesday, June 6, 2018 – 



Board of Selectmen 

  June 11, 2018 Meeting Minutes 

5 

 

Hosted a Central Mass. Regional Planning Commission Legislative Affairs Committee Meeting. Thursday, 

June 7, 2018 – Met with G. Bechtholdt and J. Sheehan to discuss Recreational Marijuana zoning. Friday, 

June 8, 2018 – Went to the Northbridge Middle School to view 5th Grade Interest Fair projects. 2) Balmer 

School Building Project: The School Building Committee Meeting recently met on June 5, 2018 to 

continue to discuss neighborhood impacts. They had met with Mason Road abutters on May 19th and are 

scheduled to have a neighborhood meeting on June 16, 2018. 3) DPW Garage Project: The Project 

remains substantially complete and we continue to work on safety-related punch list items pertaining to the 

issuance of a temporary certificate of occupancy (TCO). The Knox Box was installed and a "temporary" 

battery-operated Carbon Oxide (CO) detector will be installed to get the TCO. The permanent CO 

detector/connection will be installed when the materials arrive in 2-3 weeks. A full certificate of occupancy 

will be follow upon the completion of this work and existing/new building fire alarm/communications work 

items. The equipment lift and fueling station remain open items and the revised delivery/installation 

schedule will continue into July. 4) Fire Station Project (Feasibility Study): The Town Manager has been 

working with staff and the Owners Project Manager (OPM), as well as committee representatives, on the 

Site Selection Evaluation Process. In addition, the group will be developing an Request for Quotation for 

Designer (Architect) Selection in hopes of advertising mid-winter/early spring. The project will experience 

some delay due to the OPM representative leaving for another position with a new company. 5) FY 2019 

Budget/Spring Annual Town Meeting Follow-up: The FY 2019 Budget Development process has been 

completed and the Annual Town Meeting adopted the FY 2019 Budget. Staff will begin preparing for FY 

2018 year-end as well as moving forward with Capital Projects. 6) Other: Collective Bargaining 

Agreement negotiations are ongoing with a target ratification date of June 30, 2018. As previously reported, 

the Dispatchers Union Agreement has been signed and as of this week, the DPW Union Agreement was 

signed as well. Town Manager Gaudette stated that the Town will be holding the Open for Business 

Breakfast on Wednesday, June 27th from 8 AM to 10 AM in the Great Hall. Town Manager Gaudette stated 

that on June 23, 2018 the Town of Northbridge Historic Commission and Alternatives are sponsoring the 

Historic Trolley Tours on Saturday June 23, 2018 at 9 AM, 11 AM and 1 PM. To sign up contact the 

Whitinsville Social Library at 508-234-2151. Town Manager Gaudette announced that there are two 

vacancies on the Planning Board, one elected position and one alternate.  

 

SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS : Selectman Athanas 1) stated that final paving of Church Street looks 

good. 2) asked for an update on the “Roads” projects. Mr. Luchini stated that the bids were favorable, and 

a contract was signed and returned. Road construction should begin at the end of the month or beginning 

of next month and should be a quick turnaround. Selectman Melia noticed that the east bound lane on 

Plummers Corner was flooding. Mr. Luchini stated that the silt sacks were left in some catch basins from 

the construction, but it has since been taken care of. Chairman Ampagoomian 1) asked about the striping 

of the pavement. Mr. Luchini stated that the marking company will be here at the end of the week to stripe 

the two crosswalks and the intersection arrows, as well as the centerline and fog line. 2) asked if Mr. Luchini 

could reach out to the Department of Transportation and inform them of the potholes on Providence Road 

by Riverdale Cemetery and to check the catch basins at the entrance to the Shaw’s Plaza.  

 

ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA: None 

  

CORRESPONDENCE: None 

 

 EXECUTIVE SESSION 6:30 PM: M. 1) Under M.G.L c.30A, Sec. 21 #2 - To discuss strategy with 

respect to contract negotiations for non-union personnel [Fire Chief] and Under M.G.L c.30A 2) Sec. 

21 #3 - To discuss strategy with respect to contract negotiations [Police, Firefighters, & DPW] 

 

A motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. Nolan to adjourn the public meeting. Vote yes/ Messrs. Ampagoomian, 

Athanas, Melia and Nolan.  

 



Board of Selectmen 

  June 11, 2018 Meeting Minutes 

6 

 

Meeting Adjourned: 8:27 PM 

 

 

  

        Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

        James Athanas, Clerk  

 

 

/mjw 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of Selectmen 

  June 11, 2018 Meeting Minutes 

7 

 

LIST OF DOCUMENTATION 

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING - OPEN SESSION 

 

June 11, 2018 

 

PRESENTATION: Certificate of Special Recognition awarded to Eagle Scouts: Stephen Oncay, 

Nathan Lamberson, and Chad Lamont 

-Letter from Boy Scout Troop 155 regarding Eagle Scout Ceremony for the scouts receiving their Eagle 

Scout Badges 

  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 

I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  

 A. 1)  May 7, 2018 

 -Copy of May 7, 2018 meeting minutes  

 

 2) May 21, 2018 

 -Copy of May 21, 2018 meeting minutes 

 

II. PUBLIC HEARING  

 

III. APPOINTMENTS/By the Town Manager: B. Ms. Kim Corey, Administrative Assistant, 

 Police Department/Present: Walter Warchol, Police Chief 

 -Copy of Kim Corey’s resume  

    

IV. CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT 

 

V. DECISIONS: 

 C. Randy Dean Ross dba Lakeside Lunch Stop, 355 Main Street, Whitinsville, MA 01588/ 

 Application to transfer the non-alcoholic Common Victualler license from Charles Berry 

 d/b/a  Dotta’s Kitchen [Charles Berry, Mgr.]/Present: Randy Ross  

 -Copy of application for a common Victualler License  

 -Copy of REAP form 

 -Copy of business certificate  

 -Copy of Certificate of Organization 

 -Copy of Map of layout 

 -Copy of License Routing Slip 

 -Copy of letter from Fire Department regarding inspection 

 

 D. Alternatives/Request to hang a banner across Church Street from July 1, 2018 to July 

 15, 2018 to advertise the Free Summer Concert Series, Thursdays,  from July 5, 2018 to 

 August 30, 2018 on Alternatives Community Plaza. 

 -Copy of email requesting to hang a banner across Church Street from July 1, 2018 to July 15, 

 2018 to advertise the Free Summer Concert Series 

 -Copy of flyer  

 

 E. Bond Anticipation Notes (Department of Public Works)/Vote to Sign/Present: Julie 

 Harris, Treasurer/Collector and Neil Vaidya, Town Accountant 

 -Copy of bond 

 -Copy of vote form  



Board of Selectmen 

  June 11, 2018 Meeting Minutes 

8 

 

 

 F. Vote to accept monetary donation for Scholarship/Present: Julie Harris, Treasurer 

 Collector and Neil Vaidya, Town Accountant 

 -Copy of letter regarding the Thomas Prior and Joey LaFleur Northbridge High School 

 Memorial Scholarship 

 

 G. Dog Warrant/Vote to sign 

 -Copy of dog warrant 

 

 H. Intermunicipal Agreement-Conservation Agent Services with the Town of Upton/Vote to 

 Sign 

 -Copy of Intermunicipal Agreement with the Town of Upton for Conservation Agent Services  

 

 I. Riverdale Cemetery Deed/Liavoni Ambert [Maple Ave., Row 6, Grave 4] 

 -Copy of Riverdale Cemetery Deed for Liavoni Ambert  

     

VI. DISCUSSIONS: 

 J. Municipal Vulnerability Preparedness/Present: R. Gary Bechtholdt, Town 

 Planner & Members of Central Mass. Regional Planning Commission  

 -Copy of Municipal Vulnerability Preparedness Power Point presentation  

 

 K. Laurie Leeman/Request to do a Holiday Décor and Planter Project/Present: Laurie 

 Leeman 

 -Copy of Business plan for planter project 

 -Copy Holiday Décor Project 

 

L. School Building Committee Project Update/Present: Joseph Strazzulla, School Building 

Committee/No documentation 

   

VII. TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT 

 -Copy of Business Breakfast flyer 

 -Copy of Historic Trolley Tours flyer 

  

VIII. SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS /No documentation 

  

IX. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/None 

 
X. CORRESPONDENCE/None 

 

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION 6:30 PM: M. 1) Under M.G.L c.30A, Sec. 21 #2 - To discuss 

strategy with respect to contract negotiations [Fire Chief] and Under M.G.L c.30A 2) Sec. 

21 #3 - To discuss strategy with respect to contract negotiations [Police, Firefighters, & 

DPW]  

 



 

1 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN'S MEETING 
 June 25, 2018 

 
A meeting of the Board of Selectmen was called to order by Chairman Ampagoomian at 6:30 PM, 
Northbridge Town Hall, 7 Main Street, Whitinsville, MA. Present: Board Members – Ampagoomian, 
Athanas, Cannon and Melia. Selectman Nolan is absent, and it is duly noted. Also Present: Adam D. 
Gaudette, Town Manager and Dr. Catherine Stickney, Superintendent of Schools. 
 
Chairman Ampagoomian announced that the Board would be going into Executive Session and declared 
that having an open meeting may have a detrimental effect on the negotiating position of the body. 
 
A motion/Mr. Melia seconded/Mr. Athanas to go into Executive Session under M.G.L c.30A, Sec. 21 #6 - 
To consider the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property -and reconvene in open session. Roll 
Call Vote: Mr. Athanas/Yes, Mr. Ampagoomian/Yes, Mr. Melia/Yes, and Ms. Cannon/Yes.  
 
Open Session Adjourned: 6:31 PM 
 
Executive Session Convened: 6:33 PM 
 
Executive Session Adjourned: 6:46 PM 
 
Open Session Reconvened: 7:00 PM 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by those present. 
 
REORGANIZATION OF THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN: 1) Town Manager asks for Nominations 
for Chairman: Town Manager Gaudette asked the Board of Selectmen for nominations for Chairman. A 
motion/Mr. Athanas, seconded/Mr. Ampagoomian to nominate Thomas Melia as Chairman of the Board 
of Selectmen. Vote yes/Board Members Ampagoomian, Athanas, Cannon and Melia. 2) Chairman asks 
for Nominations for Vice-Chairman. Chairman Melia thanked the Board of Selectmen for electing him 
as Chairman and former Chairman Charlie Ampagoomian for a great job over the last year. Chairman Melia 
asked for nominations for Vice-Chairman. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Ms. Cannon to 
nominate Selectman James Athanas as the Vice-Chairman. Vote yes/Board Members Ampagoomian, 
Athanas, Cannon and Melia. 3) Chairman asks for Nominations for Clerk. Chairman Melia asked for 
nominations for Clerk. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Athanas to nominate Selectman Daniel 
Nolan as Clerk. Vote yes/Board Members Ampagoomian, Athanas, Cannon and Melia. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: A. June 11, 2018 Executive Session. A motion/Mr. Athanas, seconded/Mr. 
Ampagoomian to approve but not release the June 11, 2018 executive session minutes. Vote yes/Board 
Members Ampagoomian, Athanas, Cannon and Melia.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING: None 
 
APPOINTMENTS: By the Board of Selectmen: 2018 Annual Reappointments/Vote to appoint. A 
motion/Mr. Athanas, seconded/Mr. Ampagoomian to approve the 2018 Annual Reappointments. Vote 
yes/Board Members Ampagoomian, Athanas, Cannon and Melia.  
 
Green Committee [Selectmen’s Representative]. Chairman Melia explained that previous Selectman 
James Marzec was the Selectmen’s Rep. for the Green Committee, but he has since resigned leaving the 
appointment open. A motion/Mr. Athanas, seconded/Mr. Ampagoomian to appoint Selectman Daniel 
Nolan as the Selectmen’s Representative on the Green Committee. Vote yes/Board Members 

A2.



Board of Selectmen 
  June 25, 2018 Meeting Minutes 

2 
 

Ampagoomian, Athanas, Cannon and Melia.  
 
School Building Committee/Vote to appoint member as Representative of Office. Chairman Melia 
explained that also prior to James Marzec’s resignation he was also the Representative of Office for the 
School Building Committee, and with his resignation leaves an available appointment. A motion/Mr. 
Athanas, seconded/Mr. Ampagoomian to appoint Selectwoman Alicia Cannon as the School Building 
Committee Representative of Office. Vote yes/Board Members Ampagoomian, Athanas, Cannon and 
Melia.  
 
Local Historic District Study Committee/a) J. Timothy Reiter. b) Randeen Zanca. A motion/Mr. 
Ampagoomian, seconded/Ms. Cannon to appoint Timothy Reiter and Randeen Zanca to the Local Historic 
District Study Committee. Vote yes/Board Members Ampagoomian, Athanas, Cannon and Melia.  
 
Safety Committee Alternate/Lt. Timothy Labrie. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Ms. Cannon 
to appoint Lt. Timothy Labrie to the Safety Committee as an Alternate Member. Vote yes/Board Members 
Ampagoomian, Athanas, Cannon and Melia.  
 
By the Town Manager: 2018 Annual Reappointments/Vote to affirm. Town Manager Gaudette 
explained that these appointments fall under the authority of the Town Manager in accordance with the 
Charter. Town Manager Gaudette explained that the Board does have fifteen days after his appointment to 
make and changes or alterations. Town Manager Gaudette stated that he recommends moving forward with 
the affirmation of the appointments as presented. A motion/Ms. Cannon, seconded/Mr. Ampagoomian to 
affirm the Town Managers appointment for the 2018 Annual Reappointments. Vote yes/Board Members 
Ampagoomian, Athanas, Cannon and Melia.  
 
Mr. Brian Carroll, Police Dispatcher & John McLaughlin, Dispatch Trainee (Present: Detective 
Sergeant Ouillette). Detective Sergeant Ouillette introduced Brian Carroll and John McLaughlin to the 
Board. Detective Sergeant Ouillette explained that Mr. Carroll is a Northbridge resident, and graduated 
from Northbridge High School in 2014. He earned his bachelor’s degree in Criminal Justice from Salem 
State University and completed a four-month internship with the Northbridge Police Department. During 
that time, he became a certified E911 dispatcher. Detective Sergeant Ouillette stated that he did an excellent 
job as an intern, and was offered a position as a dispatcher, and is currently working a 4 PM to midnight 
shift. Detective Sergeant Ouillette stated that Mr. McLaughlin is also a lifelong resident of Northbridge and 
graduate from Blackstone Valley Tech in 2014 with a concentration in Information Technology. Mr. 
McLaughlin received his bachelor’s degree for Criminal Justice from Worcester State University. He 
currently works as a dispatcher and did an internship with the Police Department for four weeks. Mr. 
McLaughlin is completing is training, which should be completed soon. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, 
seconded/Mr. Athanas to affirm the Town Manager’s Appointment of Mr. Brian Carroll as a Police 
Dispatcher and John McLaughlin as a Police Dispatch Trainee. Vote yes/Board Members Ampagoomian, 
Athanas, Cannon and Melia.  
 
Rebecca Sasseville, Library Director. Town Manager Gaudette explained the Ms. Sasseville has been 
serving as an interim Library Director. Over the past year, Mr. Gaudette explained he has met with the 
Library Trustees a couple of times and explained Ms. Sasseville has done an excellent job over the past 
year. Town Manager Gaudette stated that the Board of Trustees recommending she be appoint as the Library 
Director. A motion/Mr. Athanas, seconded/Mr. Ampagoomian to affirm the appointment of Rebecca 
Sasseville to Library Director. Vote yes/Board Members Ampagoomian, Athanas, Cannon and Melia.  
 
CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT: Stanley Mertz, of 175 Carpenter Road, Owner of Hertz Racing 
Enterprises and Steven Falconer, of 115 Mason Road, were present to offer a donation to the Town of 
Northbridge. Mr. Mertz stated that he has a donation as results from the proceeds of an auction. The auction 



Board of Selectmen 
  June 25, 2018 Meeting Minutes 

3 
 

was a piece of NASCAR sheet metal from the 2015 Championship season car. Mr. Mertz explained that 
they were preparing for their 2015 season, when they heard the news of loss of Cpl. Dawson. Mr. Mertz 
explained that they felt they should do something to honor him, so they contacted the sponsors of the race 
team and a paint scheme was designed for that purpose. Mr. Mertz explained that they had an event at 
Thompson Speedway this year and used the sheet metal to raise funds for the Military Appreciation Night. 
Mr. Mertz stated that Mr. Falconer was the high bidder, and the proceeds are being donated to the Town in 
the amount of $200 to be used for the Veteran’s Services. Mr. Mertz stated that he is also donating $100 to 
the Town as well for Veteran’s Services. Selectman Ampagoomian thanked them for their generosity. A 
motion/Mr. Athanas, seconded/Mr. Ampagoomian to accept the donation of $300 to be used towards 
Veteran’s Services. Vote yes/Board Members Ampagoomian, Athanas, Cannon and Melia. 
 
Lease Renewals: Rockdale Village Foundation/Vote to renew. Town Manager Gaudette explained that 
this is an annual occurrence that the Board of Selectmen are the Chief Executive Officer. Town Manager 
Gaudette explained that this lease is for the grounds and there have been no changes except for the dates. 
A motion/Mr. Athanas, seconded/Mr. Ampagoomian to renew the Rockdale Village Foundation Lease 
through June 30, 2019. Vote yes/Board Members Ampagoomian, Athanas, Cannon and Melia. 
 
Oliver Ashton Post #343, Inc./Vote to renew. Town Manager Gaudette explained that this is also an 
annual occurrence that the Board of Selectmen are the Chief Executive Officer. Town Manager Gaudette 
explained that this lease is for the parking lot. There have been no changes except for the dates. A 
motion/Mr. Athanas, seconded/Mr. Ampagoomian to renew the Oliver Ashton Post #343, Inc. lease through 
June 30, 2019. Vote yes/Board Members Ampagoomian, Athanas, Cannon and Melia. 
 
St. Patrick’s Church/Vote to approve lease of property for use by Northbridge Public Schools. Town 
Manager Gaudette explained that he has had discussions with the Northbridge Public Schools who have 
been involved with the property owner regarding the renewal of the lease. Discussion regarding the change 
in terms due to the potential of a new school have occurred and it is suggested to go with a three (3) year 
term for time to explore the upcoming vote, and other changes that could occur from that vote. Town 
Manager Gaudette explained that this is reflected in the in the new terms and conditions of the lease and he 
recommends moving forward with those updated terms. A motion/Mr. Athanas, seconded/Mr. 
Ampagoomian to approve the Town of Northbridge to sign the lease of property for use by the Northbridge 
Public Schools with St. Patrick’s Church. Vote yes/Board Members Ampagoomian, Athanas, Cannon and 
Melia. 
 
St. Patrick’s Church/Request to hold a road race on Saturday, August 18, 2018 at 9 AM (subject to 
the safety requirements of the Northbridge Police Department)/Present: Gracia Casey.  Ms. Casey 
explained this road race is to help fund mission trips that the youth group go on, which occur at least once 
a year. Ms. Casey explained that there are children who would like to participate in these trips but are not 
able to finically. Ms. Casey stated that she has spoken with the Police Department, who have approved the 
5.2 mile course. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Athanas to approve St. Patrick’s request to 
hold a road race on Saturday, August 18, 2018 at 9 AM. Vote yes/Board Members Ampagoomian, Athanas, 
Cannon and Melia. 
 
Whitinsville Christian School/Request to hold a road race on Saturday, September 22, 2018 at 8:30 
AM (subject to the safety requirements of the Northbridge Police Department)/Present: Sonia Zeyl. 
This item was passed over at the request of Whitinsville Christian School due to a change in the course. 
 
End of year transfers/Present:  Neil Vaidya, Town Accountant. Mr. Vaidya explained that there are six 
(6) transfers for the end of the fiscal year, which is a standard practice this time of year. Mr. Vaidya stated 
that he met with the Finance Committee on Wednesday, June 20th, at which meeting they approved all the 
transfers. Mr. Vaidya explained that the first transfer is for the Town Accountants office to move $2,000 



Board of Selectmen 
  June 25, 2018 Meeting Minutes 

4 
 

from the Professional & Technical account to salaries and wages. Mr. Vaidya explained that he has a 
summer intern that was kept on longer than expected so she could meet her graduation requirements. Mr. 
Vaidya explained that there was also a change in the wage schedule, which raised her hourly salary. Mr. 
Vaidya explained that the transfer would cover that shortfall. Mr. Vaidya stated the second item is for the 
Police Department to move a total of $41,486 from Salaries/Wages Regular Position to R&M Buildings & 
Grounds $6,000 and Additional Equip. - Auto $35,486. The Chief of Police submitted a letter explained 
this transfer, which is available in the backup documentation of these minutes. Mr. Vaidya stated the third 
item is to transfer $8,000 from the Veterans Services to Solid Waste. Mr. Vaidya explained that this is 
regarding the Quaker Street landfill. One of the test wells came back with dioxane. The Department of 
Environmental Protection is requiring additional testing and additional wells. Mr. Vaidya explained some 
will go into FY 19 budget, but the $8,000 will cover the cost of the test wells and additional monitoring. 
Mr. Vaidya stated the fourth transfer is to move $22,652 from Property & Liability to Workers 
Compensation. Mr. Vaidya explained the projected number ended up be less that the actual, which caused 
a deficit. This shift will cover the shortfall. Mr. Vaidya stated the final transfer is for $30,000 from Veteran’s 
Benefits to Employer Medicare. Mr. Vaidya explained that the Town is required to pay the additional 
employee percentage of Medicare. Mr. Vaidya explained that the rate is based on the number of employees 
at the time, but if it changes or if raises occur, the Medicare number also goes up. Mr. Vaidya stated that 
this would cover if there is a shortfall, and if it is not used it will go to free cash at the end of the year. Town 
Manager Gaudette clarified that the numbers for the Workers’ Compensation are not released to the Town 
until after Town Meeting. A motion/Mr. Athanas, seconded/Mr. Ampagoomian to approve the end of year 
transfers as described. Vote yes/Board Members Ampagoomian, Athanas, Cannon and Melia. 
 
Safety Committee Meeting Minutes [April 25, 2018]/Vote to accept recommendations. Selectman 
Athanas asked for clarification on item III. Request for 4-way Stop at Jefferson Avenue and Lincoln Square 
and asked what the criteria is for installing a stop sign. Town Manager Gaudette explained that he believes 
they review the area in terms of issues such as speeding, high number of accidents, and specifics of the 
roadway. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomain, seconded/Ms. Cannon to accept the Safety Committee 
recommendations as presented to the Board of Selectmen. Vote yes/Board Members Ampagoomian, 
Athanas, Cannon and Melia. 
 
Recreational Marijuana Establishments/Present: Gary Bechtholdt, Town Planner & Brian Massey, 
Planning Board Chairman (Planning Board Public Forum -Tuesday, July 10, 2018 6 PM Town Hall). 
Mr. Bechtholdt explained that there is a need to provide zoning provisions for the siting of recreational 
marijuana establishments. Mr. Bechtholdt stated that the Planning Board is required to hold a public hearing 
prior to Town Meeting, and in conjunction with the Planning Board will be sponsoring a public workshop 
and listening session on July 10, 2018 at 6 PM. Mr. Bechtholdt encouraged those who may have comments 
or questions to attend. Mr. Bechtholdt stated that the Planning Board is working within the timeframe of 
the temporary zoning moratorium, which runs until November. Mr. Bechtholdt explained that the zoning 
article would define recreational marijuana establishments which could be retail, labs testing, etc. and define 
it as a new use, then designate appropriate zoning for the new use. Selectman Athanas asked if when the 
State guidelines came out if there are any regulations banning the recreational marijuana establishments 
from being near schools, churches, or establishments dealing with children. Mr. Bechtholdt explained that 
part of the regulation requires the establishment be at least 500 feet from schools. Mr. Bechtholdt stated 
that for the medical marijuana zoning they included a buffer for schools, places of worship, Libraries, parks, 
and registered daycare facilities for 500 feet, which would be under consideration for the recreational land 
use as well. Selectman Ampagoomian asked if the Cannabis Control Commission would be present at the 
public hearing. Mr. Bechtholdt explained that this is a local initiative, and the Cannabis Control 
Commission still has the ultimate authority over the State license, but it is left to the municipalities to zone 
locally how they feel appropriate. Selectman Athanas asked what the vote required vote will be to pass at 
Town Meeting. Mr. Bechtholdt explained that with all Zoning articles it is a two-thirds (2/3) vote and in 
this case, it will only be required at Town Meeting. Selectman Athanas verified that if it does not pass at 



Board of Selectmen 
  June 25, 2018 Meeting Minutes 

5 
 

Town Meeting, then recreation establishments can set up anywhere. Mr. Bechtholdt explained that it would 
be left to the discretion of the Building Inspector and what the existing land use category fits. Selectman 
Melia asked if he has been contacted by anyone with interest in starting a recreational marijuana facility in 
Northbridge. Mr. Bechtholdt stated that he received a phone call within the last 3 months, returned the call 
and left a message but has not heard back.  
 
Town Manager Gaudette announced that there are some items to keep in mind regarding Town Meeting, 
one being the sales tax portion of the recreational marijuana, secondly creating a Community Preservation 
Act bylaw, which will both happen at the Fall Town Meeting.  
 
Community Aggregation Program Update/Present: Stefano Loretto, Business Development Director, 
Good Energy, LP. Mr. Loretto explained that the program was renewed in January of 2018 through January 
2021. Mr. Loretto stated that the program provided savings to the residents and has been a tremendous 
success. Mr. Loretto stated that the current enrollment is at 4,331 customers with Public Power at a fixed 
rate of $ .10122 through January 2021. Mr. Loretto encouraged those watching at home to look at their 
electricity bill and check who the supplier is. Mr. Loretto explained that the Attorney General released a 
report regarding the benefits of deregulation for residential customers, and there is a clear case that elderly, 
those who do not speak English, and lower income households have been taken advantage of and 
overpaying significantly. Mr. Loretto explained that anyone moving into Town or moving within Town, 
can be deemed newly eligible, and will be sent a letter with the information. Anyone who is not currently 
a part of this program and would like to be call: 800-830-2944. Selectman Melia asked what the percentage 
of residents that have taken part in the program. Mr. Loretto explained that it is hard to give a percentage 
due to M.G.L that only allows National Grid to give Good Energy eligible customers. 
 
Community Solar Savings Program (Relay Power)/Present: Neil Potter, Partnership Director. Town 
Manager Gaudette stated that Mr. Potter could not attend the meeting but in his place is Matt Preskenis and 
Bill Kanzer. Mr. Preskenis explained that there are four projects that have been developed, two of which 
are being developed with the Code Development Partners with Renewable Energy Massachusetts and two 
projects developed by Syncarpha Solar. These are located off the Puddon Street property and off Providence 
Road and Church Street. Mr. Kanzer explained that Community Solar is an opt in program, at no cost to 
residents and is guaranteed to save money for twenty years. Mr. Kanzer explained that they work with the 
Town to get the word out, so that residents understand it. Town Manager Gaudette explained Town that 
residents are able to sign on to a net metering project that may not necessarily be in town and receive the 
credits. Mr. Gaudette explained that he has met with Mr. Potter on ways to get the word out, using the 
Town’s website, the Cable Access channel, and representatives from the community, such as Kelly Bol at 
the Senior Center, Rebecca Sasseville at the Library, Heather Elster at the Whitin Community Center. 
Chairman Melia asked if flyer could be placed in tax bills to notify residents. Town Manager Gaudette 
replied that it is something that can be discussed. Mr. Kanzer explained that if they Town wanted to go with 
flyers they would be happy to pitch in to help offset the cost to help get the word out to residents. Mr. 
Kanzer stated that if they flyer comes from the Town it helps them understand that it is backed by the Town 
and is not a solicitor. Chairman Melia asked when the program starts. Mr. Kanzer replied signups start 
immediately and the current expectation would be four to five months of construction. There will be a 
public hearing with the Planning Board on June 26, 2018 at the Town Hall, Board of Selectmen’s Meeting 
room.  
 
TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT: 1) Meetings Attended: Monday, June 11, 2018 – Attended the Board 
of Selectmen’s Meeting. Tuesday, June 12, 2018 – Held Police Union negotiations. Tuesday, June 12, 2018 
– Met with Syncarpha Solar re: Community Solar for residents. Wednesday, June 13, 2018 – Attended a 
MMMA Managers/Chief Subcommittee Meeting at Foxborough Town Hall. Friday, June 15, 2018 – Held 
Department Managers Meeting. Monday, June 18, 2018 – Met with the Upton Town Manager to discuss 
regionalization opportunities. Monday, June 18, 2018 – Met with Fire Chief White to discuss personnel 



Board of Selectmen 
  June 25, 2018 Meeting Minutes 

6 
 

transitions. Tuesday, June 19, 2018 – Met with Town Accountant Neil Vaidya to discuss FY 2018 Budget 
Transfers in advance of the Finance Committee Meeting. Wednesday, June 20, 2018 – Met with Chief 
White to discuss Fire Station Feasibility Project. 2) Balmer School Building Project:  The School Building 
Committee has their next meeting slated for Monday, June 25, 2018 and is scheduled to be before the 
MSBA on June 27, 2018. 3) DPW Garage Project: Charter and Verizon removed all utilities and the two 
(2) remaining wooden poles.  A temporary certificate of occupancy (TCO) remains in-place. A permanent 
occupancy permit will be issued after the installation of the permanent heat detector/exhaust fan connection 
and the existing/new building fire alarm/communication interconnections are completed within the next 
few weeks.  The equipment lift and fueling station remain open items and a revised delivery/installation 
schedule will be forthcoming. 4) Fire Station Project (Feasibility Study): The Town Manager and the 
Fire Chief have begun working with the OPM team from Cardinal on the Site Selection for inclusion in the 
RFQ for Designer (Architect) Services. The Fire Chief had produced a list of properties from the Assessor 
(Town-owned), from the previous study, available parcels, and local knowledge, and is working with the 
OPM to site a building on the properties in order to eliminate parcels from consideration. 5) FY 2019 
Budget/Spring Annual Town Meeting Follow-up: The FY 2019 Budget Development process has been 
completed and the Annual Town Meeting adopted the FY 2019 Budget.  Staff is in the process of wrapping 
up FY 2018 as year-end approaches and are moving forward with Capital Projects including the Roads 
Program. 5) Other: Collective Bargaining Agreement negotiations are ongoing with a target ratification 
date of June 30, 2018. The Dispatchers Union, DPW, and Firefighters Union Agreements have all been 
signed and the Police Union CBA talks are winding down. 6) REMINDER: There is an “Open for 
Business” Breakfast scheduled for Wednesday, June 27, 2018 from 8:00 a.m. to 10:00 a.m.  

 
SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS : Chairman Melia 1) asked if Town Manager Gaudette knew the cost of 
the new Fire Station in Uxbridge. Town Manager Gaudette stated he believe it was between seven to ten 
million dollars. Chairman Melia asked if it was similar in size to what we would be looking for. Town 
Accountant Mr. Vaidya replied that he is not part of the communications of what the Town is looking for 
but would guess that it is relatively similar to what Northbridge is looking for. Selectman Ampagoomian 
1) Asked if Town Manager Gaudette could provide a list of potential properties to the Select Board. Town 
Manager Gaudette stated that he would do that and explained the list they have been working from is from 
the feasibility study that was completed in 2001, and an updated list of properties including any tax title 
foreclosures that the Town now owns, properties on the market, and other properties not on the market that 
the town could look into.  Town Manager Gaudette explained that they are working off the list to narrow it 
down to three to five options based on call times from the site, grading, dimensions, and zoning. 2) 
mentioned getting chairs and tables for the use in the Great Hall. Town Manager Gaudette stated he will 
explore it and asked Town Planner Mr. Bechtholdt how he has utilized the space. Mr. Bechtholdt explained 
that it is a concern, but he has been fortunate enough to use tables and chairs from the Community Center, 
as well as the legion. 3) welcomed the newest Select Board member Ms. Cannon and congratulated her. 
Ms. Cannon thanked him and the Board members for their patients in waiting for her to finally be able to 
attend. Selectman Athanas 1) explained he checked out the DPW Facility and thought it was a fabulous 
building. 2) asked for a maintenance update on the Town owned buildings with scheduled preventative 
maintenance plan. Town Manager Gaudette added that the Town has a five-year capital plan with a listing 
relative to each building and Department. Mr. Gaudette stated that he would work with Department of 
Public Works to get something together for the Board. Selectman Melia 1) welcomed Select Board member 
Ms. Cannon and stated he looks forward to working with her, and wish her many years ahead of her. 2) also 
visited the DPW Facility building which he was impressed with the building along with the landscaping, 
and paving. 3) stated he believes the Chairperson of the School Building Committee should attend one more 
Select Board meeting, to inform the residents on the breakdown in cost and other details.  
 
Town Manager Gaudette added that he has communicated with the Chairman of the School Building 
Committee to attend a Board of Selectmen’s Meeting on July 16, 2018, but may schedule a special meeting 
in July depending on availability of Board members.  



Board of Selectmen 
  June 25, 2018 Meeting Minutes 

7 
 

ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA: None 
CORRESPONDENCE: None 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 6:30 PM: Under M.G.L c.30A, Sec. 21 #6 - To consider the purchase, 
exchange, lease or value of real property. 
 
Chairman Melia announced that the next meeting is scheduled for Monday, July 16, 2018. 
 
A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Athanas to adjourn the public meeting. Vote yes/ Board 
Members Ampagoomian, Athanas, Cannon, and Melia. 
 
Meeting Adjourned: 8:26 PM 
 
 
  
         Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
         Daniel Nolan, Clerk  
 
 
/mjw 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of Selectmen 
  June 25, 2018 Meeting Minutes 

8 
 

LIST OF DOCUMENTATION 
 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING - OPEN SESSION 
 

June 25, 2018 
 
REORGANIZATION OF THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN: 
1) Town Manager asks for Nominations for Chairman/No documentation 
2) Chairman asks for Nominations for Vice-Chairman/No documentation 
3) Chairman asks for Nominations for Clerk/No documentation 
 
I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: A. June 11, 2018 Executive Session  

-Documentation removed as the minutes have not been released 
 
II. PUBLIC HEARING: None 
 
III. APPOINTMENTS: 

B. 1) By the Board of Selectmen: 2018 Annual Reappointments/Vote to appoint 
 -Copy of Annual Reappointment listing 
 -Copy of memorandum of Annual Reappointments  
 -Copy of memorandum of attendance records of members 
 -Copy of memorandum of attendance records of Board of Assessors members  
 -Copy of memorandum of attendance records of the Board of Health  
 -Copy of memorandum of attendance records of the Conservation Commission 
 -Copy of memorandum of attendance records of the Council on Aging  
 -Copy of listing of attendance records of the Safety Committee  
 -Copy of listing of attendance records of the Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

2) Green Committee [Selectmen’s Representative]/No documentation  
3) School Building Committee/Vote to appoint member as Representative of Office/No 
documentation 
4) Local Historic District Study Committee/a) J. Timothy Reiter 
-Copy of Talent Bank Form application 
 
b) Randeen Zanca 
-Copy of Talent Bank Form application  
-Copy of Randeen Zanca’s resume  
 
5) Safety Committee Alternate/Lt. Timothy Labrie/No documentation 

 
C. 1) By the Town Manager: 2018 Annual Reappointments/Vote to affirm  
-Copy of Annual reappointments listing 
 
2) Mr. Brian Carroll, Police Dispatcher 3) John McLaughlin, Dispatch Trainee (Present: 
Detective Sergeant Ouillette)  
-Copy of resume for Brian Carrol 
-Copy of resume for John McLaughlin 
 
4) Rebecca Sasseville, Library Director 
-Copy of appointment letter  
-Copy of email from the Trustees of the Whitinsville Social Library  



Board of Selectmen 
  June 25, 2018 Meeting Minutes 

9 
 

-Copy of resume for Rebecca Sasseville 
     
IV. CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT 
 -Copy of letter regarding the fundraiser event to the Veteran’s Services donation 
 
V. DECISIONS 

D. Lease Renewals: 1) Rockdale Village Foundation/Vote to renew 2) Oliver Ashton Post 
#343, Inc./Vote to renew 
-Copy of lease for the Rockdale Village Foundation 
-Copy of lease for the Olicer Ashton Post #343, Inc. 
 
E. St. Patrick’s Church/Vote to approve lease of property for use by Northbridge Public 
Schools/No documentation   
 
F. St. Patrick’s Church/Request to hold a road race on Saturday, August 18, 2018 at 9 AM 
(subject to the safety requirements of the Northbridge Police Department)/Present: Gracia 
Casey 
-Copy of email from St. Patrick’s Parish requesting to hold a road race  
-Copy of Hold Harmless Agreement  
-Copy of map of route  
-Copy of Route directions  
-Copy of email from Police Lt. Labrie approving the map 
-Copy of email from Public Works Director James Shuris confirming there are no issues with the 
route 
 
G. Whitinsville Christian School/Request to hold a road race on Saturday, September 22, 
2018 at 8:30 AM (subject to the safety requirements of the Northbridge Police 
Department)/Present: Sonia Zeyl 
This item was passed over 
 
H. End of year transfers/Present:  Neil Vaidya, Town Accountant  
-Copy of End of Year Transfer vote record 
-Copy of letter of explanation for the Chief Warchol regarding the end of Year transfers for the 
Police Department  
 
I. Safety Committee Meeting Minutes [April 25, 2018]/Vote to accept recommendations   

 -Copy of the Safety Committee Meeting Minutes  
 
VI. DISCUSSIONS 

J. Recreational Marijuana Establishments/Present: Gary Bechtholdt, Town Planner & 
Brian Massey, Planning Board Chairman (Planning Board Public Forum -Tuesday, July 10, 
2018 6PM Town Hall) 
-Copy of Cannabis Control Commission Guidance on Types of Marijuana Establishment 
Licenses information page 
 
K. Community Aggregation Program Update/Present: Stefano Loretto, Business 
Development Director, Good Energy, LP/No documentation 
 
L. Community Solar Savings Program (Relay Power)/Present: Neil Potter, Partnership 
Director 
-Copy of Frequently Asked Questions  



Board of Selectmen 
  June 25, 2018 Meeting Minutes 

10 
 

 
VII. TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT/No Documentation 
VIII. SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS /No Documentation 
IX. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/None 
X. CORRESPONDENCE/None 
 
XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION 6:30 PM: M. 1) Under M.G.L c.30A, Sec. 21 #6 - To consider the 

purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property. 
 Documentation removed as the minutes have not been released 
 



 

1 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN'S MEETING 
July 16, 2018 

 
A meeting of the Board of Selectmen was called to order by Chairman Melia at 7:00 PM, Northbridge 
Town Hall, 7 Main Street, Whitinsville, MA. Present: Board Members - Athanas, Cannon, Melia and Nolan. 
Selectman Ampagoomian was absent, and it is duly noted. Also Present: Adam D. Gaudette, Town 
Manager. 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by those present. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: A. June 25, 2018 executive session. A motion/Mr. Athanas, seconded/Ms. 
Cannon to approve but not release the June 25, 2018 executive session minutes. Vote yes/Board members 
Athanas, Cannon and Melia. Abstain: Nolan. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: None 
 
APPOINTMENTS/By the Board of Selectmen: 1) Election Officers: Democrat, Republican and 
Unenrolled/Vote to appoint. A motion/Mr. Athanas, seconded/Mr. Nolan to appoint the Election Officers: 
Democrat, Republican and Unenrolled. Vote yes/Board members Athanas, Cannon, Melia and Nolan. 2) 
Amanda Foster, Disability Commission. Mr. Frieswick, Chairman of the Disability Commission 
explained that he felt as though Amanda would be a great candidate for the Disability Commission with her 
credentials and explained that she will be a great resource to the Commission. A motion/Mr. Nolan, 
seconded/Mr. Athanas to appoint Amanda Foster to the Disability Commission. Vote yes/Board members 
Athanas, Cannon, Melia, and Nolan. 3) Economic Development Committee: Joycelyn Augustus, 
Member at Large/Present: R. Gary Bechtholdt, Town Planner. Mr. Bechtholdt stated that Joyce has 
attended many Planning Board meetings for the development where she lives. Mr. Bechtholdt stated that 
they are looking forward to working with Ms. Augustus appreciate her willingness to serve. Ms. Augustus 
stated that she appreciates the opportunity and hopes the Committee can use her resources. A motion/Mr. 
Athanas, seconded/Mr. Nolan to appoint Joycelyn Augustus as a Member At Large to the Economic 
Development Committee. Vote yes/Board members Athanas, Cannon, Melia, and Nolan.  
 
By the Town Manager [Vote to Affirm]: Helen O’Hara, Youth Services Librarian/Present: Rebecca 
Sasseville, Library Director. Town Manager Gaudette stated that Ms. Sasseville was present to introduce 
Ms. O’Hara, and he recommends affirming this appointment. Ms. Sasseville explained that Ms. O’Hara has 
been working in the Library field for the past ten years and she is finishing up her master’s degree in Library 
Science from the University of Rhode Island. Ms. O’Hara has experience in collection, supervising, 
programing, grant writing, outreach, and reference and is very enthusiastic about working in the Library 
field. Ms. O’Hara stated she was extremely thankful for this opportunity and is ready to dive into the 
Summer Reading Program. Selectman Athanas asked if Ms. O’Hara could explain what she will be bringing 
to Youth Services and what it is for those that don’t know. Ms. O’Hara explained that the position is 
changing from a Children’s Librarian to a more broader position to include teens, along with youth. Ms. 
O’Hara stated she hopes to get the older adolescents into the Library, and to spread the word about all the 
Library has to offer to all ages. A motion/Mr. Nolan, seconded/Mr. Cannon to affirm the Town Manager’s 
Appointment of Helen O’Hara as the Youth Services Librarian. Vote yes/Board members Athanas, Cannon, 
Melia, and Nolan.  
 
CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT/None 
 
St. Patrick’s Youth Ministry - Dinner and Concert fundraising event/1) Request for a one-day Wines 
and Malts license on Saturday, August 4, 2018 from 5 PM to 7 PM and 2) Request for a one-day 
Entertainment License on Saturday, August 4, 2018 from 7 PM - 9:30 PM Present: Aileen Lemoine. 

A3.



Board of Selectmen 
  July 16, 2018 Meeting Minutes 

2 
 

Ms. Lemoine explained this was the first Dinner and Concert event. A motion/Mr. Athanas, seconded/Mr. 
Nolan to approve the request for a one-day Wine and Malt license on Saturday, August 4, 2018 from 5 PM 
to 7 PM and the request for a one-day Entertainment License on Saturday, August 4, 2018 from 7 PM - 
9:30 PM for the dinner and concert to be held at 7 East Street on Church Grounds. Vote yes/Board members 
Athanas, Cannon, Melia, and Nolan.  
  
Alternatives Unlimited, Inc./ Request to hold a Boot Drive at Memorial Square and Ovian Square on 
Saturday, July 21, 2018 from 9 AM to 1 PM [Rain date: Sunday, July 29, 2018]; subject to the safety 
requirements of the Northbridge Police Department. Kathy Lions explained this event is for the 
Massachusetts Down’s Syndrome Congress and the proceeds to increase awareness, and education for those 
with Down’s Syndrome. A motion/Mr. Athanas, seconded/Mr. Nolan to approve the request to hold a Boot 
Drive at Memorial Square and Ovian Square on Saturday, July 21, 2018 from 9 AM to 1 PM [Rain date: 
Sunday, July 29, 2018]; to benefit the Massachusetts Down’s Syndrome; subject to the safety requirements 
of the Northbridge Police Department. Vote yes/Board members Athanas, Cannon, Melia, and Nolan. 
 
Northbridge Firefighters/Request to hold a Boot Drive at Memorial Square on Saturday, August 25, 
2018 from 9 AM to 12 Noon [Proceeds to benefit the Muscular Dystrophy Association]. Present: Lt. 
David Holmes, Fire Department. Town Manager Gaudette explained that within the Boot Drive Policy, 
only one per month is allowed and one has already been granted. Town Manager Gaudette recommended 
the Board grant an exception, for two to be held in one month and explained the preeviouslt approved boot 
drive is on different a weekend. A motion/Mr. Nolan, seconded/Mr. Athanas to allow the request to hold a 
Boot Drive at Memorial Square on Saturday, August 25, 2018 from 9 AM to 12 Noon [Proceeds to benefit 
the Muscular Dystrophy Association]. Vote yes/Board members Athanas, Cannon, Melia, and Nolan. 
 
Vote to Accept Monetary Donation from Daniel O’Neill to benefit the Northbridge Fire Department. 
A motion/Mr. Athanas, seconded/Mr. Nolan to accept the Monetary Donation from Daniel O’Neill to 
benefit the Northbridge Fire Department, and to send a letter of appreciation. Vote yes/Board members 
Athanas, Cannon, Melia, and Nolan. 
  
Fall Annual Town Meeting [October 23, 2018]/Vote to close the warrant on Friday, August 24, 2018 
at 12 PM noon. A motion/Mr. Nolan, seconded/Mr. Athanas to close the Warrant on August 24, 2018 at 
12 PM noon. Vote yes/Board members Athanas, Cannon, Melia, and Nolan. 
 
Balmer School Building Project/Vote to place a Debt Exclusion question on the November 6, 2018 
State Election Ballot/Present: Joe Strazzulla, Chairman-School Building Committee. Chairman 
Strazzulla presented a lengthy update on the Balmer School Building Project. At the conclusion of the 
presentation, Selectman Athanas asked about the 30-year payment plan for the project and whether the 
Board had to vote on it. Chairman Melia responded the Board does not have to vote on the payment plan 
and added tonight’s vote is only to place a Debt Exclusion question on the November 6, 2018 State Election 
Ballot. Town Manager Gaudette further noted the Board previously discussed the impact of the borrowing 
on the average single-family home, etc. but the terms of the borrowing will be between the 
Treasurer/Collector and the Board of Selectmen. Chairman Melia thanked Mr. Strazzulla and Dr. Stickney 
for attending tonight’s meeting and commended them for all their hard work with respect to the Balmer 
School Building Project. Continuing, Chairman Melia pointed out that the warrant article that will be 
presented for the Balmer School Project at the October 23rd Fall Town Meeting will require a 2/3 vote to 
pass and the Debt Exclusion Question that will appear on the November 6th State Election Ballot, will 
require a simple majority to pass. Chairman Melia read aloud the ballot question. A motion/Ms. Cannon, 
seconded/Mr. Nolan to place the Debt Exclusion question on the November 6, 2018 State Election Ballot. 
Vote yes/Board members Athanas, Cannon, Melia, and Nolan.  
 



Board of Selectmen 
  July 16, 2018 Meeting Minutes 

3 
 

Northbridge Hazard Mitigation Plan Update/Present: Adam Menard. Mr. Menard presented the draft 
Hazard Mitigation Plan, which covers the previous five years. This presentation is available in the backup 
documentation. The Hazard Mitigation Plan is a Federal Disaster Mitigation Act (FEMA) regulation and 
needs to be in place to receive reimbursement funding. Mr. Menard listed a few of the Mitigation Measures, 
of which include stabilizing the Blackstone River bank in Rockdale, upgrade storm drains, investigate 
Community Rating Systems, and Inventory shelter/Emergency resources. Mr. Menard explained there is a 
two-week period for Town Officials to review and to comment on the plan. After those two weeks the 
additional comments will be reviewed, and the draft copy polished, and sent to Massachusetts Emergency 
Management Agency for approval, then to FEMA approval, then it the plan will be adopted and in place 
for five years. Selectman Athanas asked if the Town is required to do everything within the plan. Mr. 
Menard explained that nothing is required, the strategies do not have to be carried out how the plan is 
written, but a majority of the strategies are already in place.  
 
Recreational Marijuana Establishment Update/Present: Gary Bechtholdt. Mr. Bechtholdt explained 
that he would be discussing highlights from the Public Workshop on Recreational Marijuana 
establishments. Mr. Bechtholdt explained that the Planning Board would be sponsoring a zoning 
amendment article for the Fall Annual Town Meeting. Currently, Northbridge is under a temporary zoning 
moratorium, which runs until the end of November. The opt-out option did not pass at the Town Meeting 
or as a ballot question, which brings us to the option to amend the zoning Bylaw to allow the new use. The 
town can limit the number of Recreational Marijuana establishments to less than, fewer than 20% of the 
Section 15 off-premise alcoholic beverage licenses and can also adopt local sales taxes up to 3%. Limiting 
retailers to 20% would require Town Meeting vote and the passing of a Ballot Question. To adopt sales tax 
a Town Meeting Vote would be required. Currently Medical Marijuana dispensaries are allowed within the 
industrial-two zoning district by Special Permit of the Planning Board. Buffers can also be put in place, 
such as the buffers currently in place for the Medical Marijuana Dispensaries. Those buffers would limit 
establishments to not to be allowed within 500-feet of a school; child care facility; library; playground/park; 
youth center; or house of worship. On-site consumption is not permitted by the State, unless it is initiated 
by petition of not fewer than 10% of the number of voters of the Town voting at the State Election preceding 
the filing of the petition and approval. Selectman Athanas asked if it could be zoned under the I2. Mr. 
Bechtholdt explained that they are considering everything, and the Planning Board will have further 
discussion when preparing the zoning. Selectman Nolan asked if the 3% sales tax would apply to those 
establishments that are not specific to retail. Mr. Bechtholdt stated that he believes that the 3% is specific 
to retail only, but the Town would benefit from the property tax. Selectman Athanas asked if the State 
imposed any guidelines or buffers as explained earlier. Mr. Bechtholdt stated that the Cannabis Control 
Commission did not put anything in place but is instead leaving it up to local control for the buffers and 
zoning.  
 
Mr. Bechtholdt announced that the Planning Board will vote to sponsor the article on August 14, 2018 and 
will most likely hold a public hearing on September 11, 2018.  
 
Town Manager Performance Evaluation Process. Chairman Melia explained that the process will be the 
same as in years passed. A cumulative evaluation form will be put together based off all the Selectmen’s 
individual evaluations. Chairman Melia explained that at the next meeting, they will hold executive session 
to go over the material, before it is brought to the public.  
 
TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT: Meetings Attended: 1) Monday, June 25, 2018 – Attended the Board 
of Selectmen’s Meeting. Wednesday, June 27, 2018 – Attended the Open for Business Breakfast at Town 
Hall. Wednesday, June 27, 2018 – Attended a regional Town Managers Luncheon. Friday, June 29, 2018 
– Visited with Chip Rogers and toured Woonsocket Glass. Tuesday, July 10, 2018 – Met with Senior 
Service Director Kelly Bol and representatives from Worcester Regional Transit Authority and Central 
Mass. Regional Planning Commission regarding Council on Aging Transportation. Tuesday, July 10, 2018 



Board of Selectmen 
  July 16, 2018 Meeting Minutes 

4 
 

– Met with Dennis Rice, Alternatives, Inc., regarding a MassDevelopment Planning Grant. Thursday, July 
12, 2018 – Met with Town Planner Gary Bechtholdt and a potential applicant for a Recreational Marijuana 
Cultivation and Retail operation. Thursday, July 12, 2018 – Met with area Town Managers. Friday, July 
13, 2018 – Held a Department Managers Meeting. 2) Balmer School Building Project:  The Massachusetts 
School Building Authority has voted to approve the Schematic Design and Project Budget, along with the 
total facilities grant of $46,043,257.  The Selectmen must vote this Monday, July 16, 2018 to place the debt 
exclusion for the project on the State Ballot for November 6, 2018. 3) DPW Garage Project:  A temporary 
certificate of occupancy (TCO) remains in-place. The issuance of a permanent occupancy permit remains 
an open item and will be issued after the installation of the permanent heat detector/exhaust fan connection 
and the existing/new building fire alarm/communication interconnections are completed within the 
forthcoming weeks. The equipment lift and fueling station remain open items and a revised 
delivery/installation schedule will be forthcoming. 4) Fire Station Project (Feasibility Study): The Town 
Manager and the Fire Chief have begun working with the Owners Project Manager (OPM) team from 
Cardinal on the Site Selection for inclusion in the Request For Quotation for Designer (Architect) Services. 
The Fire Chief had produced a list of properties from the Assessor (Town-owned), from the previous study, 
available parcels, and local knowledge, and is working with the OPM to site a building on the properties in 
order to eliminate parcels from consideration.  The Town Manager and Chief will be meeting with the OPM 
this Monday, July 16th to discuss site selection. 5) Fall Annual Town Meeting:  The Manager’s office has 
initiated the process for the Fall Annual Town Meeting. Internal calendars and the Finance Committee 
schedule has been established and staff is aware that the deadline for articles is for the August 20th Board 
of Selectmen Meeting when the Board votes to set the Warrant which must be done prior to Friday, August 
24th at noon. Anticipated articles are School Project Borrowing, Community Preservation Act (CPA) 
Bylaw, Recreational Marijuana Zoning and 3% Local Option Tax, Solar PILOTS, and Board of Health 
Additional Expenses. Selectman Melia asked it the CPA is two thirds vote. Town Manager Gaudette 
explained that it was part of the Code which makes it a simple majority.  
 
SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS: Selectman Nolan 1) asked if a small flyer with instructions on how to 
sign up for Code Red could be available for residents to take at Town Meeting and Elections. Town 
Manager Gaudette replied yes. Selectman Melia 1) attended the Business Breakfast and thought that it was 
a great event and was interested to hear about all the business in town. 2) attended the Public Zoning 
Workshop, where there were not many residents in attendance and hopes that changes for the next 
workshop. 3) stated that there was a serious trailer truck accident on Linwood Ave, which could have been 
tragic. Chairman Melia commended all those Departments involved.  
 
ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA: None 
CORRESPONDENCE: None 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: None  
 
A motion/Mr. Nolan seconded/Mr. Athanas to adjourn the public meeting. Vote yes/Ampagoomian, 
Athanas, Cannon, Melia and Nolan. Chairman Melia announced the next Board of Selectmen’s meeting is 
scheduled for August 20, 2018. 
 
Meeting Adjourned: 8:24 PM 
  
         Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
         Daniel Nolan, Clerk  
 
/mjw 



Board of Selectmen 
  July 16, 2018 Meeting Minutes 

5 
 

LIST OF DOCUMENTATION 
 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING - OPEN SESSION 
 

July 16, 2018 
 
 
I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: A. June 25, 2018 executive session 

-Copy of June 25, 2018 executive session minutes 
 
II. PUBLIC HEARING  
 
III. APPOINTMENTS/By the Board of Selectmen: B. 1) Election Officers: Democrat, 
 Republican and Unenrolled/Vote to appoint 

-Copy of List of Election Officials  
 
 2) Amanda Foster, Disability Commission 
 -Copy of Talent Bank Form for Amanda Foster  
 
 3) Economic Development Committee: Joycelyn Augustus, Member at Large/Present: R. 
 Gary Bechtholdt, Town Planner  
 -Copy of Talent Bank Form for Joycelyn Augustus  
   
 C. By the Town Manager [Vote to Affirm]: Helen O’Hara, Youth Services Librarian/Present: 
 Rebecca Sasseville, Library Director 
 -Copy of cover letter  
 -Copy of acceptance letter 
 -Copy of resume 
 -Copy of Application for employment  
 
IV. CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT: 
 
V. DECISIONS: 
 D. St. Patrick’s Youth Ministry - Dinner and Concert fundraising event/1) Request for a one-
 day Wines and Malts license on Saturday, August 4, 2018 from 5 PM to 7 PM and 2) Request 
 for a one-day Entertainment License on Saturday, August 4, 2018 from 7 PM - 9:30 PM 
 Present: Aileen Lemoine 
 -Copy of application for a one-day wine and malt license  
 -Copy of hold harmless agreement  
 -Copy of requirements  
 -Copy of application for one-day entertainment license  
 -Copy of Revenue Enforcement Protection Attestation 
 -Copy of Workers’ Compensation Affidavit  
 -Copy of St. Patrick’s Workers’ Compensation Insurance  
 -Copy of license routing slip 
 
 E. Alternatives Unlimited, Inc./ Request to hold a Boot Drive at Memorial Square and Ovian 
 Square on Saturday, July 21, 2018 from 9 AM to 1 PM [Rain date: Sunday, July 29, 2018]; 
 subject to the safety requirements of the Northbridge Police Department   
 -Copy of boot drive request form  
 -Copy of Hold Harmless Agreement  



Board of Selectmen 
  July 16, 2018 Meeting Minutes 

6 
 

 
 F. Northbridge Firefighters/Request to hold a Boot Drive at Memorial Square on Saturday, 
 August 25, 2018 from 9 AM to 12 Noon [Proceeds to benefit the Muscular Dystrophy 
 Association]. Present: Lt. David Holmes, Fire Department  
 -Copy of letter requesting to hold a boot drive  
 -Copy of Boot Drive Policy  
 
 G. Vote to Accept Monetary Donation from Daniel O’Neill to benefit the Northbridge Fire 
 Department  
 -Copy of letter regarding the monetary donation 
  
 H. Fall Annual Town Meeting [October 23, 2018]/Vote to close the warrant on Friday, August 
 24, 2018 at 12 PM noon/No documentation  
 
 I. Balmer School Building Project/Vote to place Debt Exclusion question on the November 6, 
 2018 State Election Ballot/Present: Joe Strazzulla, Chairman-School Building Committee  
 -Copy of Sample Ballot question from the Town OF Holbrook  
 -Copy of ballot question  
 
 VI. DISCUSSIONS: 
 J. Northbridge Hazard Mitigation Plan Update/Present: Adam Menard 

-Copy of Central Massachusetts Regional Planning Commission Hazard Mitigation Plan question 
sheet 

 -Copy of Hazard Mitigation Plan PowerPoint 
  

K. Recreational Marijuana Establishment Update/Present: Gary Bechtholdt  
 -Copy of Planning Board Workshop flyer  
 -Copy of Recreational Marijuana Establishment flow chart  
 -Copy of Recreational Marijuana timeline 
 -Copy of Recreational Marijuana definitions  
 -Copy of zoning district maps  
 
 L. Town Manager Performance Evaluation Process 
 -Copy of memo regarding the Town Managers performance evaluation  
 -Copy of Employment Agreement between the Town of Northbridge and Adam D. Gaudette  
 -Copy of Selectmen’s Goals for the Town Manager from August 28, 2018 to August 27, 2018 
 -Copy of Performance evaluation form 
 -Copy of cumulative performance evaluation  
 
VII. TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT/No documentation  
VIII. SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS/No documentation  
IX. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/None  
X. CORRESPONDENCE/None  
XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION/None  
 



 

1 

SPECIAL BOARD OF SELECTMEN'S MEETING 

August 9, 2018 

 

A special meeting of the Board of Selectmen was called to order by Chairman Thomas Melia at 7:01 PM, 

Northbridge Town Hall, 7 Main Street, Whitinsville, MA. Present: Board Members: Cannon, Melia and 

Nolan. Selectman Ampagoomian and Selectman Athanas were absent and it is duly noted.  

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by those present. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: None 

 

PUBLIC HEARING: None 

  

APPOINTMENTS/Resignations: None 

 

CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT: None 

 

DECISIONS: A. Armenian Apostolic Church, 315 Church Street, Whitinsville / 1) Application for a 

One-day Wines and Malts License for the Annual Picnic to be held Sunday, August 19, 2018, from 

12 PM – 6 PM on Church grounds. 2) Application for a One-day Outdoor Entertainment license for 

the Annual Picnic to be held Sunday, August 19, 2018, from 12 PM – 6 PM on Church grounds. A 
motion/Mr. Nolan, seconded/Ms. Cannon to approve the application for a one-day Wines and Malts License 

for the Annual Picnic to be held Sunday, August 19, 2018, from 12 PM – 6 PM on Church grounds, subject 

to passing a fire inspection. Vote yes/Board Members: Cannon, Melia and Nolan. A motion/Mr. Nolan, 

seconded/Ms. Cannon to approve the Application for a One-day Outdoor Entertainment license for the 

Annual Picnic to be held Sunday, August 19, 2018, from 12 PM – 6 PM on Church grounds. Vote yes/Board 

Members: Cannon, Melia and Nolan. 

    

TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT: None 

SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS: None     

ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA: None 

CORRESPONDENCE: None 

EXECUTIVE SESSION  

 

A motion/Ms. Cannon, seconded/Mr. Nolan to adjourn the public meeting. Vote yes/Board Members: 

Cannon, Melia and Nolan.  

 

Meeting Adjourned: 7:05 PM 

 

 

  

         Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

         Daniel Nolan, Clerk  

 

 

/mjw 

 

 

A4.



Board of Selectmen 

  August 9, 2018 Meeting Minutes 

2 

 

LIST OF DOCUMENTATION 

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING - OPEN SESSION 

 

August 9, 2018  

 

I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES/None  

 

II. PUBLIC HEARING/None 

  

III. APPOINTMENTS/Resignations/None 

 

IV. CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT/None 

 

V. DECISIONS: A. Armenian Apostolic Church, 315 Church Street, Whitinsville / 1) 

Application for a One-day Wines and Malts License for the Annual Picnic to be held 

Sunday, August 19, 2018, from 12 PM – 6 PM on Church grounds.  

 -Copy of application for a one-day wines and malts license 

 -Copy of REAP form  

 -Copy of Workers’ Compensation Affidavit  

 -Copy of license routing slip 

 
2) Application for a One-day Outdoor Entertainment license for the Annual Picnic to be 

held Sunday, August 19, 2018, from 12 PM – 6 PM on Church grounds. 

 -Copy of application for a one-day entertainment license  

 -Copy of REAP form  

 -Copy of Hold Harmless Agreement   
     

VI. DISCUSSIONS/None 

    

VII. TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT/None 

 

VIII. SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS /None 

     

IX. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/None 

 

X. CORRESPONDENCE/None 

 

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION/None 

 







B2.











C. 



















































NTM License Slips
Row 4

Current Status On August 20, 2018 Agenda

Done

License ID: NTM#16057

License Type: One-Day Wine and Malt License

Description: Request for a One-day wine and malt license for the Annual Valley Bag Toss Event,
scheduled for September 22, 2018 (Rain date: September 23, 2018) from 12 PM - 5
PM. Event to be held on the Whitin Mill Community Plaza. Alcohol to be stored in the
kitchen on 50 Douglas Road and served on the Community Plaza.

Business: Alternatives Unlimited, Inc.

Applicant: Karen Goldenberg

Address: 50 Douglas Road Whitinsville

Approval Target 08/16/18

Slip Started on: 08/06/18 10:18 AM

PLANNING
Approve:

PLANNING
Comments: N/A -not applicable

POLICE
Approve:

POLICE
Comments: I have no issues, as they have done it in the past. Lt. Labrie

FIRE Appove:

FIRE
Comments:

BUILDING
ZONING
Approve:

BUILDING
ZONING
Comments:

CONSERVATION
Approve:

CONSERVATION
Comments: N/A



HEALTH
Approve:

HEALTH
Comments:

Approved; Please advise applicant that any food vendors
participating in this event must obtain a one-day food permit.

ASSESSORS
Approve:

ASSESSORS
Comments:

TREASURER
COLLECTOR
Approve:

TREASURER
COLLECTOR
Comments:





















NTM License Slips
Row 4

Current Status On BOS Agenda 8.20.18

Done

License ID: NTM#16060

License Type: One-Day Entertainment [outdoor]

Description: Greenway Challenge event to be held on September 29th from 12 noon to 5 PM. DJ,
and amplification system to be used

Business: Whitin Community Center

Applicant: Heather Elster

Address: 60 Main Street, Whitinsville

Approval Target 08/16/18

Slip Started on: 08/13/18 11:06 AM

PLANNING
Approve:

PLANNING
Comments: N/A -not applicable

POLICE
Approve:

POLICE
Comments:

FIRE Appove:

FIRE
Comments:

BUILDING
ZONING
Approve:

BUILDING
ZONING
Comments:

CONSERVATION
Approve:

CONSERVATION
Comments: N/A

HEALTH



Approve:

HEALTH
Comments: N/A

ASSESSORS
Approve:

ASSESSORS
Comments:

TREASURER
COLLECTOR
Approve:

TREASURER
COLLECTOR
Comments:





mwetherbee
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

mwetherbee
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxx

mwetherbee
Typewritten Text
xxxxxx

mwetherbee
Typewritten Text
xxxxx

mwetherbee
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxx











NTM License Slips
Row 3

Current Status On BOS Agenda 8.20.18

Done

License ID: NTM#16061

License Type: One-day Malt License

Description: Purgatory Beer Company, LLC is requesting an one-day malt license for the
Greenway Challenge event to be held on Saturday, September 29, 2018 from 12
Noon to 5 PM at Whitin Park. This event is outdoors and a separate Entertainment
license has been requesting and will be sent shortly. 
 
Please note the following language came directly from the ABCC: A farmer brewer
licensee is an authorized wholesaler/manufacturer and can purchase the alcohol
from themselves for a section 14 special one day license.

Business: Purgatory Beer Co. LLC

Applicant: Kevin Mulvehill

Address: 670 Linwood Ave. BLDG. C, Whitinsville

Approval Target 08/16/18

Slip Started on: 08/14/18 2:36 PM

PLANNING
Approve:

PLANNING
Comments: N/A -not applicable

POLICE
Approve:

POLICE
Comments: No issues

FIRE Appove:

FIRE
Comments:

BUILDING
ZONING
Approve:

BUILDING
ZONING
Comments:

CONSERVATION
Approve:



CONSERVATION
Comments:

N/A

HEALTH
Approve:

HEALTH
Comments: All set with Board of Health

ASSESSORS
Approve:

ASSESSORS
Comments:

TREASURER
COLLECTOR
Approve:

TREASURER
COLLECTOR
Comments:











NTM License Slips
Row 5

Current Status On Agenda for August 20, 2018

Done

License ID: NTM#16059

License Type: One-day Wine and Malt One-day Entertainment [Outdoor]

Description: Whitin Community Center is seeking a one-day Wine and Malt along with a one-day
entertainment license for their Outdoor food Festival in Whitin Park on October 13,
2018 from 11 AM - 3 pm.

Business: Whitin Community Center

Applicant: Healther Elster

Address: 60 Main Street, Whitinsville

Approval Target 08/16/18

Slip Started on: 08/13/18 11:00 AM

PLANNING
Approve:

PLANNING
Comments: N/A -not applicable

POLICE
Approve:

POLICE
Comments: No issues

FIRE Appove:

FIRE
Comments:

BUILDING
ZONING
Approve:

BUILDING
ZONING
Comments:

CONSERVATION
Approve:

CONSERVATION
Comments: N/A



HEALTH
Approve:

HEALTH
Comments: WCC is all set with the Board of Health.

ASSESSORS
Approve:

ASSESSORS
Comments:

TREASURER
COLLECTOR
Approve:

TREASURER
COLLECTOR
Comments:













NTM License Slips
Row 5

Current Status On Agenda for August 20, 2018

Done

License ID: NTM#16059

License Type: One-day Wine and Malt One-day Entertainment [Outdoor]

Description: Whitin Community Center is seeking a one-day Wine and Malt along with a one-day
entertainment license for their Outdoor food Festival in Whitin Park on October 13,
2018 from 11 AM - 3 pm.

Business: Whitin Community Center

Applicant: Healther Elster

Address: 60 Main Street, Whitinsville

Approval Target 08/16/18

Slip Started on: 08/13/18 11:00 AM

PLANNING
Approve:

PLANNING
Comments: N/A -not applicable

POLICE
Approve:

POLICE
Comments: No issues

FIRE Appove:

FIRE
Comments:

BUILDING
ZONING
Approve:

BUILDING
ZONING
Comments:

CONSERVATION
Approve:

CONSERVATION
Comments: N/A



HEALTH
Approve:

HEALTH
Comments: WCC is all set with the Board of Health.

ASSESSORS
Approve:

ASSESSORS
Comments:

TREASURER
COLLECTOR
Approve:

TREASURER
COLLECTOR
Comments:



























NTM License Slips
Row 6

Current Status Looking to schedule for the August 20th BOS agenda

Done

License ID: NTM#16056

License Type: Common Victualler's License

Description: New Common Vic. License to operate a coffee donut shop with drive thru at 4 North
Main Street. Hours of Operation to be Sunday thu Sat 5 AM - 12 midnight. Please
see attached application.

Business: Fresh Brewed Inc. dba Dunkin Donut

Applicant: Thomas Denesowicz, Barbara Denesowicz, and James Gigras

Address: 4 North Main Street, Whitinsville

Approval Target 08/15/18

Slip Started on: 08/03/18 10:31 AM

PLANNING
Approve:

PLANNING
Comments:

Planning Board reviewed/approved site development -see
Certificate of Approval dated August 22, 2017

POLICE
Approve:

POLICE
Comments:

All issues and concerns were discussed at a Safety Committee
meeting

FIRE Appove:

FIRE
Comments:

Needs to install non-combustible wall between dumpsters and
storage shed, needs to have extinguishing system inspected and
final fire inspection. Also needs to locate concrete pad for propane
storage as well as obtain a permit to store LP.

BUILDING
ZONING
Approve:

BUILDING
ZONING
Comments:

Subject to certificate of occupancy.

CONSERVATION
Approve:

CONSERVATION NCC issued Orders of Conditions in 2014 (DEP #248-610).



Comments: Extended until 02/26/2019.

HEALTH
Approve:

HEALTH
Comments: Subject to final health inspection and issuance of food permit

ASSESSORS
Approve:

ASSESSORS
Comments:

TREASURER
COLLECTOR
Approve:

TREASURER
COLLECTOR
Comments:















NTM License Slips
Row 2

Current Status On agenda for 8.20.18

Done

License ID: NTM#16062

License Type: Common Victualler License

Description: Whitinsville Gas & Market, LLC is requesting a Common Victualler License at 4 North
Main St. Whitinsville. Hours: Monday - Friday 4:30 AM to 12 AM and Saturday -
Sunday 5 AM to 11 PM

Business: Whitinsville Gas & Market, LLC

Applicant: Tarek Yatim

Address: 4 North Main St.

Approval Target 08/16/18

Slip Started on: 08/14/18 2:48 PM

PLANNING
Approve:

PLANNING
Comments: -See Planning Board Certificate of Approval dated August 22, 2017

POLICE
Approve:

POLICE
Comments: No issues

FIRE Appove:

FIRE
Comments:

Needs to complete fire safety inspection as well as final inspection
on outstanding permits

BUILDING
ZONING
Approve:

BUILDING
ZONING
Comments:

Subject to certificate of occupancy.

CONSERVATION
Approve:

CONSERVATION
Comments:

dep#248-610. See open Order of Conditions dated 02/26/14 and
extended until 02/26/2019.



HEALTH
Approve:

HEALTH
Comments:

Approval is subject to final Board of Health inspection and issuance
of Retail Food Permit.

ASSESSORS
Approve:

ASSESSORS
Comments:

TREASURER
COLLECTOR
Approve:

TREASURER
COLLECTOR
Comments:









P.

















 

 

 
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

WARRANT FOR FALL ANNUAL TOWN MEETING 
TOWN OF NORTHBRIDGE                          

TRANSACTION OF TOWN BUSINESS 
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 23, 2018 - 7:00 P.M. 

                  DRAFT #5 8.16.18 
          

 
WORCESTER, ss: 
To any Constable of the Town of Northbridge in said County, 
GREETINGS: 
In the name of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, you are hereby directed to notify the Inhabitants of 
the Town of Northbridge, qualified to vote in Town elections and Town affairs, to meet in the Northbridge 
Middle School Auditorium on Linwood Avenue, in Whitinsville, in said Northbridge, Massachusetts, on 
Tuesday, October 23, 2018 at 7:00 o'clock P.M., then and there to act on the following articles: 
 
ARTICLE 1: (Board of Selectmen)   
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate and/or transfer from available funds in the Treasury 
and/or transfer from the unexpended appropriated funds of one or more of the departments of the Town 
various sums of money and authorize the payment of prior year bills; or take any other action relative 
thereto. 
 
ARTICLE 2: (Board of Selectmen)   
To see if the Town will vote to amend the votes taken under Article 3 of the 2018 Spring Session of the 
Annual Town Meeting (May 1, 2018), appropriations and transfers under the Omnibus Budget Article, to 
raise and appropriate, and/or to transfer from available funds in the Treasury and/or the Health Insurance 
Stabilization Fund to supplement appropriations under the Omnibus Budget Article; or take any 
other action relative thereto. 
 
Board of Health Additional Expenses ($50,000) 
 
Disability Commission ($3,000) 
 
Additional Chapter 70 for NPS ($22,580) 
 
ARTICLE 3: (Board of Selectmen)   
To see if the Town will vote to amend the votes taken under Article 4 of the 2018 Spring Session of the 
Annual Town Meeting (May 1, 2018), appropriations and transfers under the Sewer Enterprise Budget 
Article, to raise and appropriate, and/or to transfer from available funds in the Treasury to supplement 
appropriations under the Sewer Enterprise Budget Article; or take any other action relative thereto. 
 
ARTICLE 4: (Board of Selectmen) 
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate and/or transfer from available funds in the Treasury 
and/or transfer from the unexpended appropriated funds of one or more of the departments of the Town, 
a sum of money to the Stabilization Fund; or take any other action relative thereto. 
 
ARTICLE 5: (Board of Selectmen) 
To see if the Town will vote to adjust the exemption of taxes due under Clause 41C Section 5, of Chapter 
59 of the Massachusetts General Laws, providing tax exemptions in the amount of $500 to persons 65 
years of age or older occupying property as their domicile, by increasing the exemption amount to 
$1,000; or take any other action relative thereto. 
 
ARTICLE 6:   (School Building Committee)  
To see if the Town will vote to appropriate, borrow or transfer from available funds, an amount of money 
to be expended under the direction of the Northbridge School Building Committee for the new W. Edward 
Balmer Elementary School, serving grades PreK-5 and located at 21 Crescent Street, Whitinsville, MA, 
which school facility shall have an anticipated useful life as an educational facility for the instruction of 
school children of at least 50 years, and for which the Town may be eligible for a school construction 

Q.  



 

 

grant from the Massachusetts School Building Authority (“MSBA”).  The Town acknowledges that the 
MSBA’s grant program is a non-entitlement, discretionary program based on need, as determined by the 
MSBA, and any project costs the Town incurs in excess of any grant approved by and received from the 
MSBA shall be the sole responsibility of the Town.  Any grant that the Town may receive from the MSBA 
for the Project shall not exceed the lesser of (1) sixty three point seventy-eight percent (63.78%) of 
eligible, approved project costs, as determined by the MSBA, or (2) the total maximum grant amount 
determined by the MSBA; or take any other action relative thereto. 
 
ARTICLE 7:  (Board of Selectmen) 

To see if the Town will vote to amend its general by-laws by establishing a new section, §4-322 

Community Preservation Committee, and inserting the following language establishing said committee;  
 
COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITTEE BYLAW 
PURSUANT TO MGL 44b  

Chapter 1: Establishment 

There is hereby established a Community Preservation Committee, consisting of nine (9) voting members 
pursuant to MGL Chapter 44B. The composition of the committee, the appointment authority and the term 
of office for the committee members shall be as follows: 

a. One member of the Planning Board (created by Section 81a of Chapter 41) as designated by 

the Board for a term of (insert number of years) 

b. One member of the Conservation Commission (created by Section 8C of Chapter 40) as 

designated by the Commission for a term of (insert number of years) 

c. One member of the Historical Commission (created by Section 8D of Chapter 40) as 

designated by the Commission for a term of (insert number of years)  

d. One member of the Park Commissioners (created by Section 2 of Chapter 45) as designated 

by the Board for a term of (insert number of years)  

e. One member of the Housing Authority Board (created by Section 3 of Chapter 121B) as 

designated by its Board of Directors for a term of (insert number of years)  

f. (Insert up to four at-large member appointments here) 

Any vacancy on the Community Preservation Committee shall be filled by the commission, authority or 
board that designated the member who creates the vacancy by designating another member in 
accordance with the above for the unexpired term.   

Should any of the Commissions, Boards, Councils or Committees who have appointment authority under 
this Chapter be no longer in existence for whatever reason, the appointment authority for that 
Commission, Board, Council, or Committee shall become the responsibility of the Board of Selectmen. 

Chapter 2: Duties 

1. The community preservation committee shall study the needs, possibilities and resources of the town 
regarding community preservation. The committee shall consult with existing municipal boards, 
including the Board of Selectmen, the conservation commission, the historical commission, the 
planning board, the parks commissioners and the housing authority, or persons acting in those 
capacities or performing like duties, in conducting such studies. As part of its study, the committee 
shall hold one or more public informational hearings on the needs, possibilities and resources of the 
town regarding community preservation possibilities and resources, notice of which shall be posted 
publicly and published for each of two weeks preceding a hearing in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the town.  The committee may, after proper appropriation, incur expenses as permitted 
by state law using funds from the community preservation fund to pay such expenses. 

2. The community preservation committee shall make recommendations to Town Meeting for the 
acquisition, creation and preservation of open space; for the acquisition, preservation, rehabilitation 
and restoration of historic resources; for the acquisition, creation, preservation, rehabilitation and 
restoration of land for recreational use; for the acquisition, creation, preservation and support of 
community housing; and for the rehabilitation or restoration of open space and community housing 
that is acquired or created with Community Preservation Funds.  With respect to community housing, 



 

 

the community preservation committee shall recommend, wherever possible, the reuse of existing 
buildings or construction of new buildings on previously developed sites.   

3. The community preservation committee may include in its recommendation to the Town Meeting a 
recommendation to set aside for later spending funds for specific purposes that are consistent with 
community preservation but for which sufficient revenues are not then available in the Community 
Preservation Fund to accomplish that specific purpose or recommended action to set aside for later 
spending funds for general purposes that are consistent with community preservation. 

Chapter 3: Requirement for a quorum and cost estimates 

The community preservation committee shall not meet or conduct business without the presence of a 
quorum and shall keep a written record of its proceedings. A majority of the members of the community 
preservation committee shall constitute a quorum. The community preservation committee shall approve 
its actions by majority vote of the quorum. Recommendations to the Town Meeting shall include their 
anticipated costs. 

Chapter 4: Amendments 

The Community Preservation Committee shall, from time to time, review the administration of this By-law, 
making recommendations, as needed, for changes in the By-law and in administrative practice to improve 
the operations of the Community Preservation Committee.  This Bylaw may be amended from time to 
time by a majority vote of the Town Meeting, provided that the amendments would not be in conflict with 
Chapter 44B of the Massachusetts General Laws. 

Chapter 5: Severability 

In case any section, paragraph or part of this chapter be for any reason declared invalid or 
unconstitutional by any court of last resort, every other section, paragraph or part shall continue in full 
force and effect. 

Chapter 6: Effective Date 

Following Town Meeting approval of this bylaw, this Chapter shall take effect immediately upon approval 
by the Attorney General of the Commonwealth. Each appointing authority shall have thirty days after 
approval by the Attorney General to make their initial appointments.  

 
or take any other action relative thereto. 
 
ARTICLE 8:  (Board of Selectmen) 
 
To see if the Town will vote to accept MGL c. 64N, Section 3 and impose a local sales tax upon the sale 
of recreational marijuana originating within the Town by a vendor rate of 3% of the gross receipts of the 
vendor from the sale of recreational marijuana, marijuana products, and marijuana edibles, said excise to 
take effect on the first day of the calendar quarter commencing at least 30 days after such vote of Town 
Meeting; or take any other action relative thereto. 
 
ARTICLE 9:   (Planning Board) 
 
To see if the Town will vote to… 
 
Recreational Marijuana Zoning 
 
; or take any other action relative thereto: 
 
ARTICLE 10: (Petition) 
 
To see if the Town will vote to.. 
 
Rezoning Knott Gravel Pit? 
 
; or take any other action relative thereto: 
 
 



 

 

ARTICLE 11: (Petition) 
 
To see if the Town will vote to.. 
 
Rezoning property off Church Street? 
 
; or take any other action relative thereto: 
 
ARTICLE 12: (Petition) 
 
Solar PILOT for Nexamp 
 
To see if the Town will vote in accordance with G. L. c. 59, § 38H to authorize the Board of Selectmen to 
enter into a Real and  Personal Property Tax Agreement with _____________________ or its affiliated 
entity, with its business address at _____________________________, for a period of up to twenty-five 
(25) years, and to approve said agreement under which  _______________________ or its affiliated 
entity, will pay the Town a sum of money per year relative to a _________ acre  +/- parcel of land 
located at ____________________, Northbridge, MA related to the proposed construction and operation 
of a Large-Scale Ground Mounted Solar Photovoltaic Installation with an expected nameplate capacity of 
approximately ___ megawatts (MW) AC, and further to allow the Board of Selectmen to negotiate any 
amendments necessary to said Tax Agreement; or take any other action relative thereto. 
 
ARTICLE 13: (Petition) 
 
Special Tax Assessment (STA) – Paw Steps 
 
To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen (a) to offer Crootof & Sawyer Ventures, 
LLC a Special Tax Assessment and to enter into a Special Tax Assessment Agreement (“STA 
Agreement”) with Crootof & Sawyer Ventures, LLC for the property located at 18 and 28 Granite Street, 
Northbridge, MA consistent with the STA Agreement on file in the Office of the Board of Selectmen, (b) to 
execute the STA Agreement and any amendments and documents relating thereto on terms and 
conditions determined by the Board of Selectmen to be in the best interest of the Town, and (c) to 
undertake any actions deemed by the Board of Selectmen to be necessary to effectuate the STA 
Agreement, including but not limited to submitting to Massachusetts’ Economic Assistance Coordinating 
Council (EACC), the STA Agreement and all such documents and information necessary to have the 
EACC approve the STA Agreement and certify a project consistent with the STA Agreement; to determine 
that the project authorized by the STA Agreement is consistent with the Town’s economic development 
objectives and is likely to increase or retain employment opportunities for Town residents; or to take any 

other action related thereto. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
And you are directed to serve this warrant by posting attested copies thereof at the Whitinsville Post 
Office and the Salvation Army, in Whitinsville, all in Precinct 1; Gary's Variety and the Northbridge Post 
Office in Northbridge, all in Precinct 2; Town Clerk's Office and 1Quickstop in Whitinsville, all in Precinct 
3; and the Whitinsville Social Library and Town Hall Annex in Whitinsville, all in Precinct 4; twenty-eight 
(28) days at least before the time and place of meeting aforesaid.  
 
 
 
WHEREOF FAIL NOT, and make due return of the warrant, with your doings thereon, to the Town Clerk 
at the time and place of said meeting.  GIVEN under our hand this 10th or 24th day of September in the 
year Two Thousand Eighteen.      
 
 



 

 

SELECTMEN OF NORTHBRIDGE 
 

      
Thomas J. Melia, Chairman 

 
 
              
James J. Athanas     Alicia M. Cannon 
 

              
Charles Ampagoomian, Jr.                                                Daniel J. Nolan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    
 
 
 
WORCESTER, SS Northbridge                                                                  Date:   
 
By virtue of this warrant I have this day notified the inhabitants of the Town of Northbridge qualified to 
vote in town elections and town affairs to meet at the time and place and for the purpose stated in said 
warrant by posting attested copies thereof as within directed. 
 
 
 
      
Constable, Town of Northbridge 



T O W N   O F   N O R T H B R I D G E ,  M A S S A C H U S E T T S  

COMMUNITY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
R. Gary Bechtholdt II, Town Planner 

7 Main Street Whitinsville, MA 01588 
Phone: (508) 234.2447 Fax: (508) 234.0821 

g b e c h t h o l d t@no r t h b r i d g ema s s . o r g  
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

Date:  July 20, 2018 
 

To:  Thomas J. Melia, Chair 
  NORTHBRIDGE BOARD OF SELECTMEN 
  
From:  R. Gary Bechtholdt II, Town Planner 
  COMMUNITY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT  
 

RE:  (CPA) COMMUNITY PRESERVATION ACT 
  Establishment of Community Preservation Committee Bylaw ‐Vote to Sponsor Article  
   

With the passage of the Community Preservation Act (CPA) at the 2017 Spring Annual Town Meeting (Art. 28) and the 

May 15, 2018 (Ballot Question), Northbridge shall establish a Community Preservation Committee (CPC) to administer 

the program in accordance with the requirements found in (MGL CH 4B) Sections 5(a) through 5(c) of the CPA statute.  

The Community Preservation Committee  (bylaw)  shall be approved by Town Meeting vote. The bylaw  spells out  the 

Committee's  composition,  length of member  terms,  and whether  the optional  "at  large" positions  are  appointed or 

elected, as well as outlining the responsibilities of the new Committee.  

As you know, with the adoption of the CPA, Northbridge creates a  local Community Preservation Fund for open space 

protection,  historic  preservation,  affordable  housing  and  outdoor  recreation.    Community  Preservation monies  are 

raised locally through the imposition of a surcharge of not more than 3‐percent (1% ‐Northbridge) of the tax levy against 

real property.     The CPA statue also established a statewide Community Preservation Trust Fund, administered by the 

Department of Revenue (DOR), which distributes matching‐funds each year to communities that have adopted the CPA.   

Each CPA community creates a local Community Preservation Committee upon adoption of the Act.  This 5 to 9‐member 

Committee shall make recommendations on the utilization of CPA funds at future Town Meetings.    

Since local adoption of the CPA the Community Planning & Development Office has been in contact with the Community 

Preservation Coalition, a not‐for‐profit organization that plays a leading role in working with the state and municipalities 

to help understand and implement the CPA. 

The  Community  Preservation  Coalition’s  webpage  (http://www.communitypreservation.org/)  includes  guidance, 

technical assistance and numerous examples of success stories throughout the state.   

Attached for your consideration (sponsorship) is a DRAFT Community Preservation Committee Bylaw to be voted at the 

2018 Fall Annual Town Meeting.   

 

Cc:  Town Manager      Town Accountant    Town Clerk    Treasurer Collector  
Conservation Commission    Planning Board    Historic Commission  Housing Authority 
Playground & Recreation     /File  

 
 
 
 

 



TOWN OF NORTHBRIDGE  

CPA ‐Community Preservation Committee Bylaw 
(DRAFT) 2018 FATM 

 
<DRAFT> 

TOWN OF NORTHBRIDGE  
COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITTEE BYLAW 

PURSUANT TO MGL 44B  

Chapter 1: Establishment 

There is hereby established a Community Preservation Committee, consisting of nine (9) voting members pursuant 
to MGL Chapter 44B. The composition of the committee, the appointment authority and the term of office for the 
committee members shall be as follows: 

a. One member of the Planning Board (created by Section 81a of Chapter 41) as designated by the Board for a 

term of (insert number of years) 

b. One member of the Conservation Commission (created by Section 8C of Chapter 40) as designated by the 

Commission for a term of (insert number of years) 

c. One member  of  the Historical  Commission  (created  by  Section  8D  of  Chapter  40)  as  designated  by  the 

Commission for a term of (insert number of years)  

d. One member of  the  Park  Commissioners  [Northbridge  Playground & Recreation Committee]  (created by 

Section 2 of Chapter 45) as designated by the Board for a term of (insert number of years)  

e. One member of  the Housing Authority Board  (created by Section 3 of Chapter 121B) as designated by  its 

Board of Directors for a term of (insert number of years)  

f. (Insert up to four at‐large member appointments here) 

Any  vacancy  on  the  Community  Preservation  Committee  shall  be  filled  by  the  commission,  authority  or  board  that 
designated the member who creates the vacancy by designating another member in accordance with the above for the 
unexpired term.   

Should any of the Commissions, Boards, Councils or Committees who have appointment authority under this Chapter be 
no  longer  in  existence  for  whatever  reason,  the  appointment  authority  for  that  Commission,  Board,  Council,  or 
Committee shall become the responsibility of the Board of Selectmen. 

Chapter 2: Duties 

1. The  community preservation  committee  shall  study  the needs, possibilities  and  resources of  the  town  regarding 
community  preservation.  The  committee  shall  consult  with  existing  municipal  boards,  including  the  Board  of 
Selectmen, the conservation commission, the historical commission, the planning board,  the parks commissioners 
and the housing authority, or persons acting in those capacities or performing like duties, in conducting such studies. 
As part of its study, the committee shall hold one or more public informational hearings on the needs, possibilities 
and resources of the  town regarding community preservation possibilities and resources, notice of which shall be 
posted publicly and published for each of two weeks preceding a hearing in a newspaper of general circulation in the 
town.   The committee may, after proper appropriation, incur expenses as permitted by state law using funds from 
the community preservation fund to pay such expenses. 

2. The community preservation committee shall make recommendations to Town Meeting for the acquisition, creation 
and  preservation  of  open  space;  for  the  acquisition,  preservation,  rehabilitation  and  restoration  of  historic 
resources; for the acquisition, creation, preservation, rehabilitation and restoration of land for recreational use; for 
the acquisition, creation, preservation and support of community housing; and for the rehabilitation or restoration 
of  open  space  and  community  housing  that  is  acquired  or  created with  Community  Preservation  Funds.   With 
respect  to community housing,  the community preservation committee shall  recommend, wherever possible,  the 
reuse of existing buildings or construction of new buildings on previously developed sites.   



TOWN OF NORTHBRIDGE  

CPA ‐Community Preservation Committee Bylaw 
(DRAFT) 2018 FATM 

 
3. The  community  preservation  committee  may  include  in  its  recommendation  to  the  Town  Meeting  a 

recommendation  to  set  aside  for  later  spending  funds  for  specific purposes  that  are  consistent with  community 
preservation  but  for  which  sufficient  revenues  are  not  then  available  in  the  Community  Preservation  Fund  to 
accomplish that specific purpose or recommended action to set aside for later spending funds for general purposes 
that are consistent with community preservation. 

Chapter 3: Requirement for a quorum and cost estimates 

The community preservation committee shall not meet or conduct business without the presence of a quorum and shall 
keep a written  record of  its proceedings. A majority of  the members of  the community preservation committee shall 
constitute a quorum. The community preservation committee shall approve its actions by majority vote of the quorum. 
Recommendations to the Town Meeting shall include their anticipated costs. 

Chapter 4: Amendments 

The  Community  Preservation  Committee  shall,  from  time  to  time,  review  the  administration  of  this  By‐law, making 
recommendations, as needed, for changes in the By‐law and in administrative practice to improve the operations of the 
Community Preservation Committee.   This Bylaw may be amended from time to time by a majority vote of the Town 
Meeting, provided that the amendments would not be in conflict with Chapter 44B of the Massachusetts General Laws. 

Chapter 5: Severability 

In case any section, paragraph or part of this chapter be for any reason declared invalid or unconstitutional by any court 
of last resort, every other section, paragraph or part shall continue in full force and effect. 

Chapter 6: Effective Date 

Following  Town Meeting  approval  of  this  bylaw,  this  Chapter  shall  take  effect  immediately  upon  approval  by  the 
Attorney General of the Commonwealth. Each appointing authority shall have thirty days after approval by the Attorney 
General to make their initial appointments.  

 



 

 

 
 

 
 

Creating an effective Community Preservation Committee Bylaw 
 
Size of the Committee: 
 
The Community Preservation Committee can range in size from five to nine members.  
The vast majority of cities and towns have a nine-member committee, and they find that 
this composition brings the most depth and experience to community preservation 
projects. 
 
Composition of the Committee – Statutory Requirement: 
 
The first five members of the CPC are required by the statute, and each of the following 
boards must designate one of its voting members to serve on the CPC: 

- The Conservation Commission (created by Section 8C of Chapter 40)  
- Planning Board (Section 81a of Chapter 41) 
- Housing Authority (Section 3 of Chapter 121B) 
- Historic Commission (Section 8D of Chapter 40) 
- Board of Parks Commissioners (Section 2 of Chapter 45) 

 
Composition of the Committee – At Large Members: 
 
These are the most popular composition of at-large members; communities often mix and 
match from this list for their four at-large members: 
 

- Appointments from other town boards, such as Open Space Committee or 
Agricultural Commission 

- Citizens of the town who do not currently hold elected or appointed office, nor 
currently serve as municipal employees, as appointed by the Selectmen, Town 
Manager, Town Moderator or another body. 

- Elected citizens of the town.  If this method is chosen for some of the at-large 
slots, there is usually a temporary appointment to the slot until such time as 
elections can be held. 

 
Term of Office: 
 
The knowledge and experience gained from working on the CPC cannot easily be 
replaced, so it is most effective to structure the committee to avoid a large amount of 
turnover in any single year.  As such, the initial terms for new members are often of 
varying lengths (one, two or three years) while the subsequent terms are three years.  By 
using this method, the turnover on the committee is never more than three members per 
year. 
 



 

 

T O W N   O F   N O R T H B R I D G E ,  M A S S A C H U S E T T S  

COMMUNITY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
R. Gary Bechtholdt II, Town Planner 

7 Main Street Whitinsville, MA 01588 
Phone: (508) 234.2447 Fax: (508) 234.0821 

g b e c h t h o l d t@no r t h b r i d g ema s s . o r g  
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

Date:  July 19, 2018 
 

To:  Thomas J. Melia, Chair 
  NORTHBRIDGE BOARD OF SELECTMEN 
  
From:  R. Gary Bechtholdt II, Town Planner 
  COMMUNITY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT  
 

RE:  RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA ESTABLISHMENTS  
  Zoning Provision & Local Option (Sales Tax) 
 

At its meeting of August 14, 2018, the Planning Board shall vote to sponsor zoning amendment article(s) for the 2018 Fall 

Annual Town Meeting (October 23, 2018) to allow for the siting, construction and operation of Recreational Marijuana 

Establishments within  town.    In  conjunction with  such  zoning  consideration  the Planning Board will hold  its  required 

public hearing Tuesday, September 11, 2018 (7:05 PM at the Northbridge Memorial Town Hall).  It is anticipated that the 

Planning Board will  include provisions  for buffer  areas,  setback  restrictions  and parking  requirements  as part of  the 

zoning bylaw.  

As noted previously, municipalities may regulate the time, place & manner of Marijuana Establishments and may adopt 

local ordinances and bylaws that impose reasonable safeguards on the operation, provided they are not “unreasonably 

impracticable”.  The  Planning  office  shall  consult  with  Town  Counsel  and  the  various  municipal  departments  in 

preparation of draft provisions.  

In accordance with MGL CH. 40A SEC. [Adoption or change of zoning ordinances or by‐laws; procedures] the Planning 

Board shall hold a public hearing and provide its report & recommendations at Town Meeting (October 23, 2018). 

In  addition  to  zoning,  Northbridge  may  also  consideration  local  options;  by  limiting  the  #  of  marijuana  retailers 

permitted to fewer than 20% of retail off‐premises alcoholic beverage licenses and imposing a 3% local sale tax.   As you 

will  recall,  limiting  the  number  of  retail  requires  Town Meeting  vote  and  passage  of  a  Ballot  question.    It  is  the 

understanding of the Planning office the local tax would not apply to sales of marijuana or marijuana product between 

marijuana establishments (only marijuana retailer to consumer).  Adopting the 3% sale tax requires Town Meeting vote 

to accept Chapter 64N Section 3 of Mass General Law [Marijuana Tax ‐Local tax option]; see provision below:   

Section 3.  Local  tax option. Any  city or  town may  impose a  local  sales  tax upon  the  sale or  transfer of marijuana or marijuana products by a 

marijuana retailer operating within the city or town to anyone other than a marijuana establishment at a rate not greater than 2 per cent of the 

total sales price received by the marijuana retailer as a consideration for the sale of marijuana or marijuana products. A marijuana retailer shall pay 

a  local  sales  tax  imposed  under  this  section  to  the  commissioner  at  the  same  time  and  in  the  same  manner  as  the  sales  tax  due  to  the 

commonwealth.  All sums received by the commissioner under this section shall not be considered received on account of the commonwealth and 

shall at least quarterly be distributed, credited and paid by the state treasurer upon certification of the commissioner to each city or town that has 

adopted this section in proportion to the amount of such sums received from the sale or transfer of marijuana and marijuana products in the city or 

town. 

The Board of Selectmen  should  consult Town Counsel on  specifics  regarding  these options and may vote  to  sponsor 

article(s) at its next scheduled meeting (August 20, 2018).  

 

Cc:  Planning Board    /File  



 
 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING 
AUGUST 20, 2018 

 
TOWN MANAGER EVALUATION – CUMULATIVE SCORE SHEET 

 
 

 
1) Budgetary/Financial administration   5.0 

 
 

2) Personnel Administration     4.5 
 
 

3) Public Relations      4.25 
 
 

4) Interaction with the Board     4.75 
 
 

5) Employee and Labor Relations    4.5 
 
 

6) Staff Development      4.0 
 
 

7) Intergovernmental      4.25 
 
 

8) Goal/Performance Attainment    4.75 
 
 

 
OVERALL PERFORMANCE REVIEW SCORE: 4.5  
                        (ALL CATEGORIES)    

 
 
 
    

R. 



S.













































































































































































































Town Manager’s Report for the Period of  

July 16, 2018 – August 17, 2018 

1. Meetings Attended: 
 

 Monday, July 16, 2018 – Met with the OPM for the Fire Station project to discuss site 
selection with Chief White. 

 Monday, July 16, 2018 – Attended the Board of Selectmen’s Meeting. 

 Tuesday, July 17, 2018 – Attended the School Building Committee Meeting. 

 Friday, July 27, 2018 – Read to Children and Parents as part of the “Read Around the 
Town” Program coordinated by the Whitinsville Social Library Staff.  

 Monday, July 30, 2018 – Met with the OPM for the Fire Station project to discuss site 
selection with Chief White and BPCC Member Kevin Curtin. 

 Monday, July 30, 2018 – Met with Chief Warchol and Chief White to discuss Opioid 
Litigation documentation for counsel. 

 Tuesday, July 31, 2018 – Met with J. Shuris, J. Luchini, N. Vaidya re:  Pine Grove 
Cemetery Trust funding. 

 Wednesday, August 1, 2018 – Attended a regional Town Managers luncheon.  

 Thursday, August 2, 2018 – Met with G. Bechtholdt to discuss FATM warrant articles. 

 Friday, August 3, 2018 – Met with G. Bechtholdt and representatives from Paw Steps re: 
potential STA (Special Tax Assessment). 

 Monday, August 13, 2018 – Attended the School Building Committee Meeting. 

 Tuesday, August 14, 2018 – Attended the Council on Aging Meeting and issued a 
Certificate on behalf of the Town to Adele Gentry who is retiring after 18 years of service 
as an Outreach Worker at the Sr. Center. 

 Wednesday, August 15, 2018 – Met with Chairman Melia to discuss Performance 
Evaluation and the Agenda for the next BoS meeting. 

 Wednesday, August 15, 2018 – Conference Call with DPW and Tanko Lighting re: LED 
Streetlight Conversion Project. 

 Friday, August 17, 2018 – Held a Department Managers Meeting. 

 
2. Balmer School Building Project:  The MSBA has voted to approve the Schematic Design and 

Project Budget, along with the total facilities grant of $46,043,257.  The Selectmen have voted to 
place the debt exclusion for the project on the State Ballot for November 6, 2018.  The warrant 
article has been reviewed and approved by Town Counsel, MSBA and Bond Counsel.  The 
School Building Committee voted this past Monday, August 13, 2018 to sponsor the article on 
the Fall Annual Town Meeting Warrant.   
 

3. DPW Garage Project:  A temporary certificate of occupancy (TCO) remains in-place. The OPM 
is working with the General Contractor/Engineer-On-Record to finalize the OEM manuals and 
project close-out documents.   The final certificate of occupancy will be issued after 
the remaining/open items are completed. These include the installation of the permanent 
heat detector/exhaust fan connection and the existing/new building fire alarm/communication 



interconnections, Professional Engineering-On-Record affidavits and "as-builts".  The fueling 
station remains an open item and the OPM is working on a revised delivery/installation 
schedule.   

 
4. Fire Station Project (Feasibility Study): The Town Manager and the Fire Chief have begun 

working with the OPM team from Cardinal on the Site Selection for inclusion in the RFQ for 
Designer (Architect) Services.  The Fire Chief had produced a list of properties from the Assessor 
(Town-owned), from the previous study, available parcels, and local knowledge, and is working 
with the OPM to site a building on the properties in order to eliminate parcels from consideration.  
The site selection team has met with the OPM several times to discuss site selection and are 
preparing for site recommendations for the BPCC.  Another site review meeting is scheduled for 
August 20, 2018. 
 

5. Fall Annual Town Meeting:  The Manager’s office has initiated the process for the FATM.  
Internal calendars and the Finance Committee schedule has been established and staff is aware 
that the deadline for articles is for the August 20th Board of Selectmen Meeting when the Board 
will vote to set the Warrant, which must be done prior to Friday, August 24th at noon.  
Anticipated articles are School Project Borrowing, CPA Bylaw, Recreational Marijuana Zoning 
and 3% Local Option Tax, Solar PILOTS, and increase in Board of Health Additional Expenses. 
 




